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Corporate Information
NAEER
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, aged 76, is Chairman
of the Company. After obtaining a Bachelor of
Engineering Degree (Chemical Engineering) in Canada
in 1959, he spent three years as a lecturer at the Hong
Kong Technical College until 1964 when he founded
the Company.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man, aged 47, son of Dr.
Wong, Philip Kin Hang, was appointed to the Board
as an Executive Director on 15 September 1997. He
graduated from the University of Manchester Institute
of Science & Technology in 1987 and joined the
Company in the same year. He worked as an engineer,
project coordinator, engineering manager and then
general manager for operations.

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, aged 46, son of Mr.
Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, was appointed to the Board
as a Non-Executive Director on 18 July 2001 and
re-designated as an Executive Director on 19 April
2002. He became a Deputy Executive Chairman on
19 April 2007. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor's Degree
in Chemical Engineering and a Master Degree in
Economics. He is a U.S. Certified Public Accountant
(CPA), a Certified Management Accountant (CMA) and
is certified in financial management (CFM). He is an
independent non-executive director of Modern Beauty
Salon Holdings Limited (Stock code: 0919) and Nan
Nan Resources Enterprise Limited (Stock code: 1229),
both companies whose shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing, aged 49, was Alternate Director to
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, Chairman until 1 July 2008
when he was appointed to the Board as an Executive
Director with effect from 1 July 2008. Mr. Mok joined
the Company as a production planning coordinator
in 1990. He was appointed as a production manager
in 1993 and general manager of Raymond (Panyu
Nansha) Electrical Appliances Development Co. Ltd.
in 1996. Since 2005, Mr. Mok has been appointed as
a member of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference in Guangzhou City, Nansha District.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

RAEERSREEEBBIT

Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang, GBs, Jp, LLD, DH, aged
79, brother of Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, has been a
Director of the Company since 1973. Dr. Wong is a
consultant of a Hong Kong firm of solicitors, a Notary
Public and a China Appointed Attesting Officer.

Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng, aged 42, was appointed to
the Board as a Non-Executive Director on 3 January
2011. Mr. Xiong graduated from the Department of
Computer Science of Nankai University and obtained
his bachelor degree in science in July 1992. He then
obtained his master degree in Economics from Nankai
University School of Economics in July 1995. Mr.
Xiong joined China North Industries Corporation in
August 1995 and took up the post of deputy general
manager of China North Industries Xiamen Corporation
from October 1999 to November 2000. Mr. Xiong is
currently the chairman and executive director of AKM
Industrial Company Limited (Stock code: 8298) (“AKM
Industrial”), a company whose shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange. In November 2000, Mr. Xiong joined
Silver City International (Holdings) Ltd., the controlling
shareholder and a substantial shareholder (as defined
in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”)) of AKM Industrial, as assistant
General Manager and was promoted to the position
of Deputy General Manager in March 2004. He is a
director of Alpha Luck Industrial Limited, the controlling
shareholder and a substantial shareholder (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of AKM Industrial since March
2001. Mr. Xiong also serves as a director of AKM
Electronics Industrial (Panyu) Ltd., AKM (Suzhou)
FPC Company Limited, AKM Electronic Technology
(Suzhou) Company Limited, Ever Proven Investments
Limited and Giant Rise Technology Ltd.

Ms. Li, Yinghong, aged 49, was appointed to the
Board as a Non-Executive Director of the Company
with effect from 4 July 2008. Ms. Li is an executive
director of AKM Industrial. In July 1985, she obtained
her Bachelor's Degree in Corporate Finance and
Accounting from Jiangxi College of Finance. In May
2003, she obtained a Master Degree in International
Management from Australia National University.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

From March 2001 to April 2003, she was a director of
Norinco International Cooperation Company Limited,
a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
in China. In June 2003, Ms. Li joined Silver City
International (Holdings) Ltd. as a director, deputy
general manager and financial controller.

Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung, aged 69, was
appointed to the Board as an Independent Non-
Executive Director in 1988. He is an entrepreneur
with extensive international experience in garment
manufacturing and trading. He is the founder of the
Onwel Group of Companies in 1969 and has been
holding the position of executive chairman since 1982.

Mr. Fan Ren Da, Anthony, aged 51, joined in
1994 as an independent non-executive director of
the Company. Mr. Fan holds a Master's Degree in
Business Administration from the United States of
America. He is the chairman and managing director of
AsialLink Capital Limited. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Technovator International
Limited (Stock Code: 1206), Uni-President China
Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code: 0220), Shanghai Industrial
Urban Development Group Limited (Stock Code:
0563), Renhe Commercial Holdings Company Limited
(Stock Code: 1387), Tenfu Cayman Holdings Ltd.
(Stock Code: 6868), Citic Resources Limited (Stock
Code: 1205), Guodian Technology & Environment
Group Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 1296) and
Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited
(Stock Code: 2882), all listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr Fan is also the independent
non-executive director of Shenzhen World Union
Property Consultancy Co. Ltd., a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. In June 2011, he resigned
as an independent non-executive director of Chinney
Alliance Group Limited (Stock Code: 0385), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming, aged 75, was appointed to the
Board as an Independent Non-Executive Director on
2 July 2004. Mr. Ng was previously a non-executive
director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 0440), a company whose shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange. He has over 40 years of experience
in hire purchase and leasing finance.
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Chairman’s Statemenmf
FEHRE

| am pleased to present the annual results of Raymond
Industrial Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2011.

During the year of 2011, Hong Kong manufacturers
operating in China faced stiff competition from
Mainland manufacturers in procurement of raw
materials and attracting enough labour. The pool of
skilled labour shrinked in Guangdong province as many
of the non-Guangdong province workers chose to stay
in their home provinces. Because of the shortage of
labour, manufacturers had no choice but to pay higher
wages and more overtime, and the higher labour costs
affected the Group’s profitability.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2011, the
Group’s consolidated turnover was HK$1,175,520,127,
an increase of 21.6% compared with the same
period in the previous year. However, the Group only
achieved a net profit of HK$18,160,024, which was
lower than the net profit of 29,791,743 for the year
2010. Operating profit before changes in working
capital was still positive despite lower profitability, and
cash generated from operations was approximately
HK$69,213,852. Qur cash and cash equivalents
balance at the end of 2011 was HK$169,334,260 (with
HK$25,681,635 dividend paid out during the year)
compared with HK$161,273,936 at the beginning of the
year. The positive operating cash flow and substantial
cash balance allow the Group to continue to pay
satisfactory dividend.

In 2011, the Group had invested HK$48,612,045 in
setting up new production lines for new products,
and purchasing more injection molding machines to
cope with the growth in sales. The Group expects
the investment in equipments and machineries to be
lessen in 2012 as the management re-examines the
profitability of each product line and plans to close the
unprofitable ones.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2011, the
Group’s consolidated turnover was HK$1,175,520,127
compared with HK$966,563,582 in the previous year,
representing an increase of 21.6% in turnover.
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The Group’s net profit was HK$18,160,024,
representing basic earnings per share of 4.27 HK cents
(our net profit in 2010 was HK$29,791,743, with basic
earnings per share of 7.38 HK cents).

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES
AND COMMITMENT

To uphold the Group’s vision and endeavor to groom
young talents for the manufacturing industry, the
Group continues to participate with the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in the “Teaching Company
Scheme” under the University-Industry Collaboration
Programme of the Innovation and Technology Fund.
Fresh graduates qualified for this program will be
employed to work at our manufacturing sites for
research projects until they complete their master’s
degrees. All these efforts aim at providing our next
generation of engineering professionals with a better
understanding, incentives, encouragement and the
necessary foundation to build a successful professional
career in the manufacturing industry. In 2011, Senior
Management of the Group gave several lectures
at Hong Kong Polytechnic University and intended
to continue this practice of sharing manufacturing
knowledge and experience with engineering students in
the coming years.

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
the Company, | would like to extend the Board’s
appreciation to all our staff for their hard work and
dedication throughout the year.

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DN

FINANCIAL POSITION

The liquidity position of the Group remains sound.
Its current ratio was 2.20 as of 31 December 2011,
compared with 2.57 as of 31 December 2010.

During the year 2011, the Group’s trade receivables
turnover stood at 56 days, compared with 64 days in
2010. The inventory turnover in year 2011 is 53 days,
same as year 2010.

Bank balances and cash were HK$169,334,260 as
of 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$161,273,936),
representing an increase of HK$8,060,324 over that
of the previous year, mainly due to positive cash
generated from operations.

There were no bank borrowings as of 31 December
2011, and the Group’s debt to equity ratio was 45% as
of 31 December 2011 (2010: 36%).

The Group had no contingent liabilities as of 31
December 2011 (2010: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, the share capital structure of the
Company has not been changed with details shown in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The Board of the Company has proposed the payment
of a final dividend of HK$4 cents per ordinary share
for the year ended 31 December 2011. The proposed
final dividend, if approved by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, will be paid on 12
June 2012 to the shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on 4 June
2012.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be
closed for the following periods:

(1)

For the purpose of determining shareholders
who are entitled to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held
on Friday, 25 May 2012 (“2012 AGM”), the
Register of Members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, 23 May 2012 to Friday,
25 May 2012, both days inclusive. In order to
qualify for attending and voting at the 2012
AGM, all transfer documents should be lodged
for registration with Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 22 May 2012.

For the purpose of determining shareholders
who qualify for the final dividend, the Register
of Members of the Company will be closed on
Thursday, 31 May 2012 to Monday, 4 June
2012, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for
the final dividend, all transfer documents should
be lodged for registration with Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 30 May
2012.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

The Group has no charges on assets as of 31
December 2011 (2010: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DN

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group is cautiously optimistic about the operations
and performance in the 2012 financial year. The
Group continues to launch new innovative and better
quality products in an uncertain market environment.
The Group will shift its strategy to focus on increasing
market share in Japan, Korea and Mainland China to
counter the market weakness and risks in Europe and
United States.

During 2011, the Group co-developed and successfully
launched more than 8 series of new air purifiers/water
purifiers and 2 series of new fan products. Because of
the higher than expected one time set up charges for
these new products, the additional expenses affected
our results in 2011. However, we expect to reap the
rewards from these new products as sales quantity will
increase in 2012, and we can achieve better production
efficiency with higher sales volume.

In 2011, the Group’s management noticed that the
shortage of labour led to significant increase in direct
labour costs. To counter the continuous increase, the
Group will invest more in semi-automations in 2012
so that some of the critical processes will be less
dependent on the recruitment of labour. With more
semi-automated processing, the Group hopes to be
able to control direct labour costs more effectively in
2012.

In 2011, we completed our sustainability program with
major emphasis on developing process improvement
to enhance better efficiency, effectiveness and
adaptability, at the same time placing equal emphasis
on creating a better environment for the future
generation by minimizing wastage and emission of
harmful substances during manufacturing process. Our
commitment to focus on developing environmentally
friendly air and water purification new products lead
us to explore new opportunities in the fast growing
environmental related industries, especially in
emerging markets such as China and India.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

STAFF

The Group currently employs approximately 36 Hong
Kong staff members and provides them with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and contribution
pension scheme. Our factory in the PRC employs
about 500 staff members, and workers employed
directly or indirectly range from around 3,000 to 4,000
persons during the year. Remuneration is determined
by reference to their qualifications, experience and
performance.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted
in the United States dollars, Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. The Group does not foresee any substantial
exposure to foreign currency fluctuations and thus use
of financial instruments for exchange rate hedging
purpose is not considered.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

The Board has the pleasure to submit the annual
report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in Hong
Kong and has its registered office and principal
place of business at Rooms 1801-1813, 18th Floor,
Grandtech Centre, 8 On Ping Street, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is sale of
electrical home appliances. The principal activities and
other particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company
are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Group during the
financial year are set out in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases attributable to
the Group’s major customers and suppliers during the
financial year are as follows:

BEECHN ST AEBEHEZ2011F12A3IBLFEZF
MM EBZERAMBRE -

IREBEHE
ARER—MEREEMAIN ETRA - M ER

NEBEBMERET BTN AL AL FESHEZP 18
#£1801-1813% ©

FEEH

ARBzEBEBRHEFRESR BT EXBREW
BREIDTERNGRAMBHRERMFE13 -

FEBZFTEXBREEB I NEHRGS M BRERW
11 e

FEEFRHER
AEBZTEHERNELEAKREEFEZRBEL
HERZBOLWT

Percentage of
The Group’s total

rEEzEHBSE
Sales Purchases
SHER 2421
The largest customer SPNESE 35% N/A 7135 B
Five largest customers in aggregate AAREFER 90% N/A “T~ 38 B
The largest supplier =AHIER N/A 7~ 27%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hRHERE ST N/A 138 39%

None of directors (the “Directors”), their associates
or any shareholders of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers during the year.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011 and the state of affairs of the Group
as at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 42 to 130.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends,
of HK$18,160,024 (2010: HK$29,791,743) have been
transferred to reserves.

An interim dividend of 2 HK cents per ordinary share
was paid on 31 August 2011 (2010: 2 HK cents per
ordinary share). The Board recommends the payment
of a final dividend of 4 HK cents per ordinary share
(2010: 4 HK cents per ordinary share) in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2011.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$167,750 (2010: HK$7,750).

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets are set out in
note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in note 22(c) to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the
date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae (Chairman)
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing

Non-Executive Directors:

Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang

Mr. Huang, Zhouchang (resigned on 3 January 2011)
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng (appointed on 3 January 2011)
Ms. Li, Yinghong

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung

Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da

Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming

Alternate Directors:

Mr. Zhang, Yuankun
(alternate to Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae)

Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit
(alternate to Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang)

Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng (resigned on 3 January 2011)
(alternate to Mr. Huang, Zhouchang)

In accordance with article 112 of the Company’s
articles of association (“Articles of Association”), Mr.
Wong, Raymond Man Hin; Mr. Xiong Zhengfeng and
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da will retire from the Board
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-
election.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. IR & %58 A7)
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is
not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

The Non-Executive Directors do not have specific
terms of appointment but are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the transactions disclosed in note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements, no contract
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party, and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.
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Report of the Directors
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2011, the interests of the Directors
in the shares of the Company, its subsidiaries and
other associated corporations (within the meaning of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) were
as follows:

(i) Interests in issued shares

EERARFAZRORAERG S

R2011F12H318 @ RIFEAR D R KB FE 5 K HE K
(TFEHIEH ) 35216 Ma% B 2 B M ATHEEE: © sKE K
BEREEBMARSHERA T?é%}tm%ﬁﬁ‘mimiﬁﬁlm
Mﬁf‘+aﬁim€*f7}\§$iéﬁ’éﬁx%mh SFAI([1Z
PR ) BHAARRIREBBAERSMBRARIMAEE
%%%Ezﬁﬁa P ARELZ FRAEREEBAE (EER
BHEED) 2R RABRGD 2 ERZOT

(i) BOROES

Number of shares

ROHE
% of total
Issued
Personal Family Corporate Share Shares
Interests  Interests Interests Options Total  &E BT
BAEZ REERE FEER B I & ROBESE
(Note 1) (Note 6)
(1) (i16)
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae HEALE 11,377,584 150,000 91,497,597 - 103,025,181 23.84%
(Note 2) (Note 3)
(#t2) (i3)
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man HEHLE 10,668,448 - - 3,800,000 14,468,448 3.35%
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin BEXBELE 12,417,972 - - 800,000 13,217,972 3.06%
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing RRELE 2,713,000 - - 3,800,000 6,513,000 1.51%
Non-Executive Directors HHTEE
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang "R FHET - 421,000 35,755,688 3,743,000 39,919,688 9.24%
(Note 4) (Note 5)
(it4) (it5)
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng BRIF B A - - - 750,000 750,000 0.17%
Ms. Li, Yinghong £ - - - 3,250,000 3,250,000 0.75%
Independent Non-Executive BUHHNTEE
Directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung PRI E 3,694,300 - - 693,800 4,388,100 1.02%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BLERE 644,300 - - 693,800 1,338,100 0.31%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming MRBEE 1,023,800 - - - 1,023,800 0.24%
Alternate Directors REZ
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit BRAERE - - - 750,000 750,000 0.17%
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun RITHEAE 900,000 - - 930,000 1,830,000 0.42%

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. IR & %58 A7)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

(i) Interests in issued shares (Continued)
Notes:

(1) The shares are registered under the names of the
Directors who are the beneficial shareholders.

(2) Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai, spouse of Mr. Wong,
Wilson Kin Lae, is the beneficial shareholder.

(3) Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae is the beneficial
shareholder of 91.7% of the issued share capital
of Broadbridge Enterprises Limited and Diamond-
Harvest Limited, which owned 13,615,837 and
77,881,760 shares respectively in the Company as at
31 December 2011.

(4) Mrs. Wong Cheng, Gertrude Kwok Cheung, spouse
of Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang, is the beneficial
shareholder.

(5) Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang is the beneficial
shareholder of 50% of the issued capital of Ho Kit Man
Inc. and Sunnydale Enterprises Holdings Ltd., which
owned 35,669,688 and 86,000 shares in the Company
respectively as at 31 December 2011.

(6) Share options are granted to the Directors under the
Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) approved by the
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting on
6 June 2003, details of which are set out in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent
long positions in the shares.

(ii) Interests in underlying shares

Apart from as disclosed under the section headed
“Share Option Scheme” below, none of the Directors or
any of their spouses or children under eighteen years
of age has interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company,
or any of its holding Company, subsidiaries or other
associated corporations, as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share options are granted to the Directors, employees
and other eligible participants specified under the
Scheme approved by shareholders of the Company
at the extraordinary general meeting on 6 June 2003.
Details of the Scheme are as follows:

Purpose To give eligible participants incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group

Directors, employees of any member
of the Group or any controlling
shareholder of the Company
(“Controlling Shareholder”) or any
company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder,

Participants (i)

Holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or
any Controlling Shareholder of the
Company or any company controlled
by a Controlling Shareholder,

(i)

(iiiy (a) any business or joint venture
partner, contractor, agent or
representative of, or

(b) any supplier of goods or

services to, or

(c) any customer or distributor of

goods or services of,

Any member of the Group or
any Controlling Shareholder or a
company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder;

And for the purpose of the Scheme,
shall include any company controlled
by one or more persons belonging to
any of the above classes of persons

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. IR & %58 A7)
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Total number of
ordinary shares
Available for
issue and the
percentage of
the issued share
capital that it
represents as at
the date of the
annual report

Maximum
entitlement of
each participant

Period within which
the securities must
be taken up under
an option

Minimum period for
which an option
must be held
before it can be
exercised

Amount payable on
acceptance of the
option

Period within which
payments must be
made

Basis of determining
the exercise price

The remaining life of
the Scheme

38,465,600 ordinary shares
and 8.90% of the issued share
capital

1% of the aggregate number of
ordinary shares in issue in any
12-month period up to the date
of grant

Within a maximum period of
10 years commencing from the
date of grant of such options

Not applicable

HK$1.00 for each lot of share
options granted

21 days from the date of the
offer

The higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares on the
offer date or (ii) the average
closing price of the shares for
the 5 trading days immediately
preceding the offer of the
option, provided that the
exercise price is not less than
the nominal value of the share

The Scheme shall remain
in force until 5 June 2013
unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of
the Scheme
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Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

As at 31 December 2011, the Directors, employees
and other participants had the following interests
in options to subscribe for shares of the Company
(market value per share at 31 December 2011 was
HK$0.70) which were granted for a consideration of
HK$1 for each lot of options under the Scheme. The
options are unlisted. Each option gives the holder
the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of the
Company with nominal value at HK$0.50.

No. of options

BRESTE(E)

M2011F12A31H EE - EEXEMBEATHRER
R ANTEZ  ZSEREDREERETSUNE
HEREREUSTRY  AIREAQRKD (R20114F
12A31B R MEA0.70%8 L) - Bk EYE T - &K
BERERTEAEAENRE —KRARQRRSREAEES0E
T2 E AR o

BREHR
Market value
Held at Granted  Cancelled  Exercised Outstanding per share at
1 January During During during At the Period During date of grant
2011 the year the year the year Year end which Options Exercise of options*
2011 E RER RER RER REL are Exercisable price RERE
1A18 Btz HH#z E#z HATEz  Date granted BRETTE pershare  REBHZ
2% BREZE BREHE BREZE  BREHE RILEH B8 BROEE ERmE
HK$ HK$
&1 V-7
Directors
Bz
Executive Directors:
HTEE:
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man 3,800,000 - - - 3,800,000  30June2008 30 June 2008 to 0910 0.844
ERQEE 2008564308 29 June 2018
2008564308 %
2018565297
3,000,000 - - (3,000,000) - 60ctober 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009510768 5 October 2019
200910460 Z
2019410758
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin 3,800,000 - - (3,000,000) 800,000  30June2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
EXELE 200856/330F 29 June 2018
200856300 %
2018564298
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing 3,800,000 - - - 30800,000  30June2008 30 June 2008 to 0910 0.844
ERESE 2008564308 29 June 2018
200856A30AZ
2018567298
3,000,000 - - (3,000,000) - 60ctober 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009510468 5 October 2019
2009F10A6HE
2019510450
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BRESTE (8)
No. of options
EREHR
Market value
Held at Granted  Cancelled  Exercised Outstanding per share at
1 January During During during At the Period During date of grant
2011 the year the year the year Year end which Options Exercise of options*
R2011E RER RER RER RER are Exercisable price REBRE
1818 Riiz H#z [z  HATEZ  Date granted BRETTE  pershare  RERHZ
2GB  BREHME BREHE BRERR  BREHA REAM B8 SRORE sRmE
HKS$ HKS$
A1 V-8
Non-Executive Directors:
FHTEE
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang 493,000 - - - 493,000  21June2005 21 June 2005 to 2425 1.736
BYFEL 2005567218 5 June 2013
2005564218 %
201356458
1,750,000 - - - 1,750,000  30June2008 30 June 2008 to 0910 0.844
2008564308 29 June 2018
2008F6A30R %
201856 /29H
1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0610
2009510468 5 October 2019
2009F10A6RE
2019510458
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng 450,000 - - - 450,000  30June2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
REETE 2008563308 29 June 2018
2008564308 %
2018564298
300,000 - - - 300,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009510468 5 October 2019
20091060 %
2019510 A5H
Ms. Li, Yinghong 1,750,000 - - - 1,750,000 30June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
eI 2008564308 29 June 2018
2008564300 Z
2018564298
1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009%10A68 5 October 2019
2009510766 %
2019F10A5H
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang 1,750,000 - - - 1,750,000  30June2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
(resigned on 3 January 2011) 2008564308 29 June 2018
(Note 1) 2008564300 E
BHETE 2018565297
(0MEIA3RRE) (1) 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0610
2009510468 5 October 2019
2009510A6H
2019510758
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BRESTE (8)
No. of options
BREHR
Market value
Held at Granted  Cancelled  Exercised Outstanding per share at
1 January During During during At the Period During date of grant
2011 the year the year the year Year end which Options  Exercise of options*
R2011E RER RER RER RER are Exercisable price REBRE
1A1R Riiz H#z [z  HATEZ  Dategranted BRETMTE  pershare  BEEHZ
&8  BRE¥E BRE¥E BRE¥E BREXA RiLAH ZBE SROKE BRmE
HKS$ HKS$
AT V78
Independent Non-Executive
Directors:
BUFHTEE:
Mr. Leung, Michae! Kai Hung 393,800 - - - 393,800 30June2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
2EERE 2008564308 29 June 2018
2008564308 %
2018565297
300,000 - - - 300,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009510468 5 October 2019
200910460 Z
2019410758
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da 393,800 - - - 393,800 30June2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
BLERE 20086 /130F 29 June 2018
200856A30AE
2018564298
300,000 - - - 300,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
200910468 5 October 2019
2009510662
2019510758
Alternate Directors:
REE:
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit 450,000 - - - 450,000  30June2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
BRARE 2008563308 29 June 2018
20085643072
2018564298
300,000 - - - 300,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009%10A68 5 October 2019
2009F10A6HE
2019510458
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun 930,000 - - - 930,000  30June2008 30 June 2008 to 0910 0.844
o bt 2008564308 29 June 2018
2008564308 %
2018564298

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. IR & %58 A7)

22



Fi'eport of the Directors
EEEHRE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BRESTE (8)
No. of options
RREHE
Market value
Held at Granted  Cancelled  Exercised Outstanding per share at
1 January During During during At the Period During date of grant
2011 the year the year the year Year end which Options Exercise of options*
R2011E RER RER RER RER are Exercisable price REBRE
1818 Riiz H#z [z  HATEZ  Date granted BRETTE  pershare  RERHZ
2GB  BREHME BREHE BRERR  BREHA REAM B8 SRORE sRmE
HKS$ HKS$
A1 V-8
Employees 552,000 - (80,000) - 472,000 21June 2005 21 June 2005 to 2425 1.736
&8 2005564218 5 June 2013
2005564210 F
2013565
9,765,000 - (630,000) (77,0000 8,358,000  30June2008 30 June 2008 to 0910 0.844
200856308 29 June 2018
200856A30AZ
2018564298
10,330,000 - - (7,355,000 2,975,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009510768 5 October 2019
20095106 E
2019410758
Other eligible persons 170,000 - (120,000) - 50,000  21June2005 21 June 2005 to 2425 1.736
HftRERAL 2005567218 5 June 2013
2005564218 %
20135658
4,935,000 - (510,000) (525,0000 3,900,000  30June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
2008564308 29 June 2018
2008564300 %
2018564298
3,065,000 - - (2,805,000) 250,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009%10F68 5 October 2019
2009F10A6H %
2019510758
60,267,600 - (1,340,000) (20,462,000) 38,465,600
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Notes:

(1M

The Board agreed to extend the rights of exercise of
outstanding share options of Mr. Huang Zhouchang to
31 March 2012.

The options granted to the Directors are registered
under the names of the Directors who are the
beneficial owners.

being the weighted average closing price of the
Company’s ordinary shares immediately before the
dates on which the options were granted or exercised
(as the case may be).

Information on the accounting policy for the options
granted and the weighted average value per option is
provided in note 2(k)(ii) and note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

Apart from disclosed above, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2011 was the Company, or any of
its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. IR & %58 A7)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2011, according to the register of
members kept by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO and so far as is known to, or can be
ascertained after reasonable enquiry by the Directors,
the following persons/entities, other than a Director,
had an interest in the shares and underlying shares
and debentures of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Réport of the Directors
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R2011F 128318 « IBARFIRIEEF K5 336 15 T
FEZBRRERZM MESEELEEERE A E
R THAL/ BE(TREZES)RNAR AN - 188
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Number of shares

RO E
% of total
Registered Corporate Family issued
Shareholders Interests interest Total shares
BHLER BEET
BETRE EEER REREE ROBEYE ROBIE
Substantial shareholders FERK
Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai ~ ¥/iE&+ 150,000 91,497,597 11,377,584 103,025,181 23.84%
(Note 2) (Note 1)
(i#2) (i#1)
Diamond-Harvest Limited Diamond-Harvest Limited 77,881,760 - - 77,881,760 18.02%
(Note 3)
(i23)
Silver Talent Development SV EEBR A A - 53,080,800 - 53,080,800 12.28%
Limited
Mrs. Wong Cheng, Gertrude EHEEZ+ 421,000 35,755,688 3,743,000 39,919,688 9.24%
Kwok Cheng (Note 4)
(it4)
Ho Kit Man Inc. Ho Kit Man Inc. 35,669,688 - - 35,669,688 8.25%
(Note 5)
(i15)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

(1) These shares were held by Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae,
spouse of Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai, details of which
are set out in the section headed “Directors’ interests
in shares and underlying shares” above.

(2) These shares were held through Broadbridge
Enterprises Limited and Diamond-Harvest Limited,
companies beneficially owned by Ms. Sun, Amelia
Kwing Hai and her spouse, Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae.

(3) These shares were held through Diamond-Harvest
Limited, a company controlled by Ms. Sun, Amelia
Kwing Hai and Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae.

(4) These shares were held by Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang,
spouse of Mrs. Wong Cheng, Gertude Kwok Cheung,
details of which are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ interest in shares and underlying shares”
above.

(5) These shares were held through Ho Kit Man Inc., a
company controlled by Mrs. Wong Cheng, Gertude
Kwok Cheung and Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent
long positions in the shares of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date
of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
on pages 131 and 132 of this annual report.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. IR & %58 A7)

%ﬂ&i%$ﬁﬂ2&ﬁ&ﬁ@&ﬁZ%§
Wi -

(1) HEEODEBFMELLZEBEZNEERFHE - &
BESH LR [EERARR 2B AR RO R Z

B o

(2) ZEBRODNDEBRFMELLINEAEBEZERZ
Broadbridge Enterprises Limited}Diamond-Harvest
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Diamond-Harvest Limitedts &
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of Hong Kong,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
shares during the year ended 31 December 2011.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No substantial contracts concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Group were entered into or
existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2011,
which do not constitute connected transactions under
the Listing Rules, are disclosed in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates two defined benefit retirement
schemes which cover all of the Group’s employees,
and a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme. Particulars
of these retirement schemes are set out in note 19 to
the consolidated financial statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent
Non-Executive Directors to be independent.
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AUDITORS = E D

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited will retire and, being XBEBSMESAMER AT MmEE  BRREE
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A [JEISE(T - BEREXBELSHMELSMERARARA
resolution for the re-appointment of Baker Tilly Hong GRS 2 R B REESHEMBRITZREBAEAS -
Kong Limited as auditors of the Company will be

proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board EERED

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae *E

Chairman BEA

Hong Kong, 30 March 2012 A% 20123 A430H
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Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) puts great
emphasis on corporate governance by reviewing and
strengthening corporate governance measures from
time to time. The board of directors (the “Board”) of
the Company believes that shareholders can derive
maximum benefits from good corporate governance.

Throughout the year, the Company was in compliance
with the Code of Corporate Governance Practices
(the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”),
with an exception of deviations from code provision
A.4.1 of the CG Code in respect of the service term of
independent non-executive directors.

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-
executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) should be appointed for a specific
term and subject to retirement by rotation.

None of the existing independent non-executive
directors of the Company is appointed for a specific
term. This constitutes a deviation from code provision
A.4.1 of the CG Code. However, all independent non-
executive directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the provisions of the
Company’s Articles of Association. The Company has
also received the annual confirmation of independence
from each independent non-executive director and the
Board believes that independent non-executive director
continues to be independent. As such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure that the standard of the Company’s corporate
governance practices is not lower than those required
in the CG Code.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors.
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MNREZERRAR ([ARADYHEEXRERBRAER I
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BMEXFMARARES EmAR (T ERRALD) K14
PRtz e XEREMR TR (TERFA)) A4 ARGRI
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REBEERTAAAARGHRAE  FATES (BREBLHE
HITER)EREFEZEFHAARESIK

ARAZBEFRNTEFTOIRBTELREFH - AR
BE T BRTRIAAAEGRZAEE - A REARAF 2
NEMABER(HEER])  FRATEFHAERER
RBEFAEWESK ARRCKIISHIFRNTES
ZFEEBUER  RESBUFNTEFTHEERESSE
Mool ARBRRCEBANEHRABRARAZ
EEEAKFENMERER TR ZER -

ESETESRRS

ARARERA ETRBIT S0P E T RREFHETT
EHERGHBRETA(BETRANDEREFETESRR
HEETTR > WRAK TBERIZEST RN E E 5| &

ERREBABRARGEASEERHRERNE
EAL e
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Having made specific enquiry, all the directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Company’s corporate governance structure
includes the Board and three committees under
the Board, namely audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee. The Board
stipulates the terms of reference for all committees
in writing and specifies clearly the power and
responsibilities of the committees.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises four executive Directors, three
non-executive directors, and three independent non-
executive directors (and two alternate directors).
Each of the non-executive directors is appointed for
an unspecified term. Please refer to page 14 of this
annual report for composition of the Board.

All independent non-executive directors have complied
with the requirements of the Listing Rules and have
submitted to the Company annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board has assessed their independence
and confirms that all independent non-executive
directors are independent parties as defined in the
Listing Rules. Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung was
appointed on 16 March 1988, Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da
was appointed on 12 December 1994 and Mr. Ng Yiu
Ming was appointed on 2 July 2004. The appointment
of Directors is not fixed for a specified term, but,
they are subject to the retirement and re-election
requirements at every annual general meeting pursuant
to the Articles of Association.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. IR & %58 A7)
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The family relationship among the Directors is
summarized as follows:

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, Chairman and Dr. Wong,
Philip Kin Hang are brothers.

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae is the father of Mr. Wong,
Raymond Man Hin and uncle of Mr. Wong, John Ying
Man and Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit.

Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang is the father of Mr. Wong,
John Ying Man and Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit and
uncle of Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man and Mr. Wong, David Ying
Kit are brothers and they are cousins of Mr. Wong,
Raymond Man Hin.

The Directors have conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The Board convenes at least two regular meetings
each year (approximately each six months), and will
convene further meetings when necessary. When
a regular Board meeting is convened, the Board
documents will be sent to the Directors for review
before the meeting pursuant to the Listing Rules
and the CG Code so that the Directors can keep
abreast of the information to perform their duties and
responsibilities. The Board convened 8 meetings in
2011.

31
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The attendance of directors is as follows:

EFHEBRAOT :

Attendance
HE
No. of meetings
Attended/
No. of meetings
held during
term of service Attendance
Director Name HEEERE Rate
ExEH EHAEBERE e =
Executive Directors PITEE
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae (Chairman) BEAN A (FE) 8/8 100%
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man BRESLAE 7/8 88%
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin BN A AE 8/8 100%
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing RigE k4 8/8 100%
Non-Executive Directors HHITEE
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang BRFIHELT 8/8 100%
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang mEHELE
(resigned on 3 January 2011) (201141 A3H & MT) 1/8 13%
Mr. Xiong Zhengfeng AR IF I 5 A4
(appointed on 3 January 2011) (20111 A3 & 1T) 6/8 75%
Ms Li, Yinghong TR AT 2t 7/8 88%
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUHHTESE
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung ZERIE A 8/8 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da Bl ELE 8/8 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming h MR S A& 8/8 100%

The remuneration of Directors is determined with
reference to their functions and responsibilities in
the Company, the performance of the Company and
the current market conditions. No Director is allowed
to participate in determining his own remuneration.
The remuneration received by Directors from the
Company during the year is set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statement. The Board has set
up an independent professional consulting procedure
and upon reasonable request, Directors are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expenses.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three Independent
Non-Executive Directors and one Non-Executive
Director with extensive experience in accounting or
legal matters. The audit committee was established
with specific written terms of reference, mainly
responsible for reviewing the consolidated financial
statements and annual and interim reports and
accounts of the Company, submitting relevant reports
and recommendations to the Board, reviewing the
Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems and making recommendations
on the appointment and remuneration of the auditors
of the Company and any matters related to the
termination of appointment. Mr. Leung, Michael
Kai Hung is chairman of the audit committee
and is responsible for reporting the results and
recommendations of the audit committee to the Board
after each meeting.

In 2011, the audit committee convened 3 meetings.
Members of the audit committee and their attendance
are as follows:

TREA®RE

EREE"

BERREQM3BBIUSFRTESTMIBIFNTESER
EetRERTHAELELR BERZEGCOKULER
HETZAEEHNARANGEAMBBRRRFEREF
FHRENKE MEFSRIAERSLERER &
BIARRZHMBEE AfERRAREERXGLAA
NRAZBMNEE FHREMERKIZRAEEER
iz - RREEERBERZBENIR  BARER
CHRRAEFEREFRZEGNIRERNEEBER -

R20115F - EREZEEHBHIRNGE - KEHEERLA
T

Attendance

HE

No. of meetings attended/
No. of meetings

held during the year Attendance
Member Name HESBRE Rate
REER FHRNEBRRE HE =R
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung (Chairman) 22 B e 4 (£ &) 3/3 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da B ERAE 3/3 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming RS £ 3/3 100%
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang EHESLE
(resigned on 3 January 2011) (20111 A3HEHE) 1/3 33%
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Tasks undertaken by the audit committee during the
year included reviewing the 2010 audited consolidated
financial statements and the annual results
announcement, reviewing the interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2011 and the interim results
announcement, considering the accounting standards
adopted, reviewing the explanatory letter about audit
submitted by the auditors to the management and the
response of the management, the basis of opinion and
qualified opinion (if any) made by the auditors in their
report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee comprises three
Independent Non-Executive Directors, two Executive
Directors and one Non-Executive Director. The
remuneration committee was established with specific
written terms of reference, principally responsible
for reviewing and approving remuneration plans for
directors and senior management, determining the
remuneration package of executive directors and
senior management, including benefits, pension
interests and the payment of compensation. Mr. Leung,
Michael Kai Hung is chairman of the remuneration
committee and is responsible for reporting the meeting
results and recommendations of the remuneration
committee to the Board after each meeting.

In 2011, the remuneration committee convened 2

EREEEREEENMMN IIEREER2010EEED
ERGAVBRERAFEEERE  HEHE=2011F6 A
30H6MEAMFTHRERPHERNE  EEMRANE
TR EHZEMESEEENERIBRNHB R R
EIEERRE ZHMEEREEMENE LEERRA
ER(MB)EEE -
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FNZBEM3BBUIFRNITES 2R NTEERI1AIF
WTEFER - FHZESCKUBRREEIEAER
FIMMtEZEERGREBAENFH IR BEXWTE
EREREEENFNGE  BREME  RREERER
BESXN REELERFTHZEENERE  AENE
REFRAEFTEREFTHZRENERERIIERER
H o

% KB RIMFEER

p=1Trd

R2011F - HFE B g RIT2RE

meetings. Members of the remuneration committee and N
their attendance are as follows:
Attendance
HE
No. of meetings attended/
No. of meetings
held during the year Attendance
Member Name HESBRE Rate
REER FHANERRE HE=x
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung (Chairman) =i %4 (£ /&) 2/2 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BICESLAE 2/2 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming hBEA L& 2/2 100%
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang mHELE
(resigned on 3 January 2011) (201151 H3H &) 1/2 50%
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin B\XREEE 2/2 100%
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man BRESA 2/2 100%
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Tasks undertaken by the remuneration committee
during the year included reviewing the remuneration
structure, remuneration policy and bonus system
of the Group, assessing performance of Executive
Directors, considering the salary adjustment for the
year and making recommendations to the Board. The
remuneration committee also ensures that no Director
or senior management member determines his own
remuneration.

The remuneration policy of the Group is to determine
the remuneration of Executive Directors and senior
management based on their responsibilities,
qualifications and working performance. No Director
or any of his associates is involved in deciding his
own remuneration. The Company has adopted a
share option scheme as an incentive to the Directors,
employees and other eligible participants. Details of
the share option scheme are set out in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statement.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee comprise one non-executive
director, namely Mr. Huang Zhouchang, and three
independent Non-Executive directors, namely Mr.
Leung. Michael Kai Hung, Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da
and Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming (Chairman). The nomination
committee is to deal with the appointment, re-election
and retirement of Directors.

In 2011, the nomination committee convened 2
meetings. Members of the nomination committee and
their attendance are as follows:

TREA®RE
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REZESE

RAZEEMIAIFNTESE EHEAENIBEYF
HMITES  RRUESLL  SBCERERMBALE (XF)
MK - RAZBRRBEFNRT  EEMEENFER -

R20MF - REZEEBET2REE - KEMEFEBER
e

Attendance

HE

No. of meetings attended/
No. of meetings

held during the year Attendance
Member Name HESBERE Rate
MEER FHREBRHY HE R
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang EHESEE
(resigned on 3 January 2011) (2011451 A3H BHT) 1/2 50%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BIESAE 2/2 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming (Chairman) HRBAL A (FE) 2/2 100%
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung RERIE A& 2/2 100%
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ROLES OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is principally responsible for establishing
the development direction of the Group, formulating
targets and business development plans, approving
major agreements and matters, and monitoring
the performances of senior management. It is also
responsible for corporate governance with a view
to enhance shareholders’ value. Led by the three
general managers, the management is responsible for
implementing the strategies and plans developed by
the Board.

The Company has developed a schedule of matters
reserved to the Board for decisions and has separately
identified those functions reserved to the Board. The
Board will review those arrangements on a regular
basis to ensure that the arrangements meet the needs
of the Company.

ROLES AND DUTIES OF CHAIRMAN AND
GENERAL MANAGER

The chairman and the general manager (equivalent
to chief executive officer) have different roles. The
chairman is responsible for the operation of the
Board and the general managers are responsible for
managing the operations of the Group. Their functions
have been clearly divided to ensure a balanced
distribution of power and no authority will concentrate
on a single individual.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. IR & %58 A7)
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Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, the chairman of the Board,
is principally responsible for leading the Board and
ensures the Board to act in the best interests of the
Company. The chairman ensures that the Board to
operate effectively and perform its proper duties and
discuss all important and proper matters in a timely
manner. The chairman is responsible for convening
Board meetings, consulting, determining and approving
the agenda of each Board meeting, and ensuring that
Directors are provided sufficient information on current
matters in a timely manner. The chairman oversees
the structure, number of members and composition of
the Board and makes recommendations to the Board
and the relevant committees on any intended changes.
The chairman is also responsible for ensuring that
the Company formulates good corporate governance
practice and procedure.

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, the deputy executive
chairman, an Executive Director and a general
manager, is principally responsible for the daily
operation and management of the Group’s overall
operations and implementing the Board’s operating
strategy and policy and delegating tasks to all
departments for implementation so as to realize the
Board’s objectives and decisions. In addition, he is also
responsible for the Group’s financial reporting, internal
control, material procurement and control, logistics,
customs, taxes and legal matters and compliance,
coordinating close cooperation among all departments,
uniting efforts of staff and encouraging the initiative of
staff so as to ensure smooth and effective operation of
the Company’s operations and systems.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man, an Executive Director
and a general manager, is principally responsible for
the daily operation and management of the Group’s
overall operations and implementing the Board’s
operating strategy and policy and delegating tasks to
all departments for implementation so as to realize the
Board’s objectives and decisions. In addition, he is also
responsible for research & development, production,
quality assurance and new product innovations,
coordinating close cooperation among all departments,
uniting efforts of staff and encouraging the initiative of
staff so as to ensure smooth and effective operation of
the Company’s operations and systems.
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Mr. Mok, Kin Hing, an Executive Director and a
general manager, is principally responsible for the
daily operation and management of the Group’s
overall operations and implementing the Board’s
operating strategy and policy and delegating tasks to
all departments for implementation so as to realize the
Board’s objectives and decisions. In addition, he is
also responsible for supervising all personnel issues at
our Nansha production facilities, all capital equipments
installation and disposal, and overseeing all employee
champions programs to optimize costs and make
sure our facilities are in full compliance with local,
international and environment laws and standards.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Article 95 of the Articles of Association, the
Board is entitled to appoint any person as Director from
time to time or at any time to fill a casual vacancy or
add a new member to the Board. For nomination, the
nominee’s qualifications, capabilities and potential to
make contribution to the Company shall be taken into
consideration by the nomination committee.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

The finance department of the Company is managed
by a qualified staff and supervised by Executive
Director and general manager, Mr. Wong, Raymond
Man Hin, who is a U.S. certified public accountant.
With the assistance of the finance department,
the Board will ensure that the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group
complies with relevant regulations and applicable
accounting standards.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. IR & %58 A7)

38

NTEFRAKERRELL:  TEREEBHEREEEE
ERXBRATEFNKENEE EREFENRER
BN T TEEBERHFMNT NEREFESNH
BARTE o beoh ERESYBERMPEERLZMEA

FEE AERLEEAREG BEEBRIZERANH
RABINEFR AT M  BERMANREZTE2NE

At - BIBRIA N B BRE AN RAZE

EERA

BREAAFRNAMEIZESK  EFARIKANE
MRAZEENARAES  WEBERREZERAMER
EXZgNE REAZEQAZERRERBALZER &
N RERRBEREEE

-~ B /A

o

B R REF&
BEEHRARRHNAEDEAMBRRARGAE -

ARBMEHHAERBEEE YHATEZT ALK
BENBAEEERARE BAERXBEHREGE -
EMBHMOHBS T  EFSERAKERA W HRERN
AT AREARLERNGRTER -

=



Corpora"fe Governance Report

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the fee paid
or payable to the Company’s auditor, Baker Tilly
Hong Kong Limited, were approximately HK$616,000
for audit service and approximately HK$237,000 for
non-audit services which comprised other assurance
services and tax services.

The statement of reporting responsibility issued by
the Company’s auditor in respect of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group is set out in the
independent auditor’s report on pages 40 to 41.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has maintained communication
with its shareholders through the annual general
meeting or other general meetings and encourages
them to participate in general meetings. Registered
shareholders of the Company receive notices of
general meetings by post. The notice of general
meeting contains the agenda, the proposed resolutions
and the voting form. All shareholders of the Company
are entitled to attend the annual general meeting
and special general meetings of the Company.
Shareholders who are unable to attend the general
meeting can fill in the proxy form attached with the
notice of general meeting and return the same to the
share registrar and transfer office of the Company so
as to appoint their representatives or the chairman of
the meeting as their proxies.
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Independentaudnoﬂéfepon

B2 RS

=

BAKER TILLY

HONG KONG LIMITED
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

RISV & 3T Rl B A R 28 )
2nd Floor, 625 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong
& L A 2 E 6255F 21

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO

THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

RAYMOND INDUSTRIAL LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on
pages 42 to 130, which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 31 December 2011, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2011
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2012

Chan Kwan Ho, Edmond
Practising certificate number P02092
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ConSOIidated income étatement (for the year ended 31 December 2011)

— = 22
%é‘*ﬁﬁi% (BZ2011512831H L F )
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABEREN)
2011 2010
Note HK$ HK$
Bt it B BB
Turnover B 4 1,175,520,127 966,563,582
Cost of sales $H 55 B AR (1,072,173,832) (868,858,517)
Gross profit EF 103,346,295 97,705,065
Other revenue H U A 5 1,774,960 1,533,831
Other net income HAth ) F U 5 5 6,960,016 6,607,508
Selling expenses HEEZR (23,051,153) (16,071,445)
General and administrative —MRERITHER
expenses (64,774,540) (52,671,205)
Profit before taxation RR B A 2 R 6 24,255,578 37,103,754
Income tax expense FriS 8tz 7 (6,095,554) (7,312,011)
Profit for the year and attributable 7~ 2 5] B 3R fE {5 4~ £ E % A
to equity shareholders
of the Company 18,160,024 29,791,743
Earnings per share BRAER 10
Basic, HK cents BNz 1 4.27 7.38
Diluted, HK cents 5E - A 4.25 7.25

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are
set out in note 22(b).

The notes on pages 51 to 130 form part of the
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive iNCOME or te year ended st December 2011
%éé@ﬁﬁ:ﬁ% (BZ2011F12A31A LFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REN)
2011 2010
HK$ HK$
B BB
Profit for the year FEBA 18,160,024 29,791,743
Other comprehensive income for the year: FEHME2mEUE :
Exchange differences on translation of BRERINFEBH B RE
financial statements of overseas EAENERZHE -
subsidiaries, net of nil tax BREZFE 15,540,097 8,268,694
Total comprehensive income for the year EATRREGFEZ
and attributable to equity shareholders 2HNEAE
of the Company 33,700,121 38,060,437

The notes on pages 51 to 130 form part of the
consolidated financial statements.

HRESIHE
— 515 -

F10R LM ERER L FREP BRI L
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Consolidated balance sheet @ 31 pecember 2011)

%éﬁ%ﬁ%%(moﬂimﬁm H&EH)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REA)

2011 2010
Note HK$ HK$
Ki it B JB M
Non-current assets kRBEE
Fixed assets TEEE 12
— Property, plant and equipment —ME - HEKEE 222,923,885 200,107,200
— Interests in leasehold land —RELLESHFEER
held for own use under ZHiRER
operating leases 10,076,945 9,999,449
Deferred tax assets RIEFLTHE B 14(b) 9,223,883 8,378,308
242,224,713 218,484,957
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 15 155,480,081 125,414,189
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E AW ARIE 16 205,732,023 191,505,393
Tax recoverable A] 3R B £ 18 14(a) 4,044,968 5,634,895
Cash and cash equivalents BHehRELZEIER 17 169,334,260 161,273,936
534,591,332 483,828,413
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R E M EAERIE 18 239,725,930 184,933,361
Dividends payable FET AR B 371,149 1,392,311
Tax payable JE& 1~ #5418 14(a) 3,007,074 4,271,985
243,104,153 190,597,657
Net current assets REBEEZE 291,487,179 293,230,756
Total assets less current liabilities REERABARE 533,711,892 511,715,713
Non-current liabilities eI h=Ri
Deferred tax liabilities EEIEAE 14(b) 207,037 161,190
NET ASSETS EEFE 533,504,855 511,554,523

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. F|R&E%45R A7)
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Consolidated balance sheet @ s1 becember 2011)
ﬁé‘ﬁg ﬁ%% (A2011FE12831B & E)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AB¥AHEEN)
2011 2010
Note HK$ HK$
Ki it B JB M

CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERXR#E
Share capital f& 7 22(c) 216,103,630 205,872,630
Reserves ke 317,401,225 305,681,893
TOTAL EQUITY ol 533,504,855 511,554,523

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of /2012563 H30R EEE& #/F REETIE -
directors on 30 March 2012.

Wilson Wong Kin Lae Raymond Wong Man Hin
HER BEXHE

Director Director

EF EF

The notes on pages 51 to 130 form part of the FHNFES1HEZFE130E ZMFEAEKLSHEATERRZ
consolidated financial statements. — &5
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REA)

"

Balance sheet @is1 becember 2011)
EE ﬁ%% (A2011E12831B & &)

2011 2010
Note HK$ HK$
Ki it B JB M
Non-current assets kRBEE

Fixed assets BEE&E
— Property, plant and equipment —ME - BERZE 12 2,130,512 4,909,090
Investments in subsidiaries YNGR &= 13 231,356,305 231,356,331
233,486,817 236,265,421

Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 15 378,008 1,009,559
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E MW ARIE 16 179,230,593 169,687,507
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE BT B~ Bl BR I8 13 72,890,940 68,320,429
Tax recoverable Al R Bl § 18 14(a) 4,015,046 5,625,679
Cash and cash equivalents BekBE&EMEER 17 117,151,309 88,097,464
373,665,896 332,740,638

Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables BE5KhEMEMNEKRIEA 18 154,818,197 123,368,976
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEfHHT B A A BRIE 13 25,835,900 26,761,372
Dividends payable FE T A% B 371,149 1,392,311
181,025,246 151,522,659
Net current assets REBEEZE 192,640,650 181,217,979
Total assets less current liabilities ®REERABERE 426,127,467 417,483,400

Non-current liabilities eI h=Ri

Deferred tax liabilities EEIEAE 14(b) 148,242 148,242
NET ASSETS EEFE 425,979,225 417,335,158

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. F|R&E%45R A7)
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Balance sheet (i s1 becembor 2011)
ﬁg ﬁ@i% (RA2011F12A31HEE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(B REN)
2011 2010
Note HK$ HK$
Ki it B JE B

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAXREE 22
Share capital fi% < 216,103,630 205,872,630
Reserves ke 209,875,595 211,462,528
TOTAL EQUITY R 425,979,225 417,335,158

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of /2012563 H30R EEE& #/F REETIE -
directors on 30 March 2012.

Wilson Wong Kin Lae Raymond Wong Man Hin

B F BEXE
Director Director
EF EE

The notes on pages 51 to 130 form part of the HRES1HEEZF1308 2MERAEKIEFHREVBEREK L
consolidated financial statements. — &R o
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity (or te year enced st pecember 2011)
%é*&ﬁ%@]%(aézonﬁuﬁmEutir;*;)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABYREN)
PRC
Share Share  Exchange Capital ~ Retained statutory Total
capital  premium reserve reserve  earnings reserve equity
RE  RREE EXRE  BARE  RERA PEEERE  AHER
Note HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
it Vit BE BE Y Vit BE BE
At 1 January 2010 W2010%1A1R 197,092,442 179,826,978 51,637,269 9,720,822 19,671,805 27,854,930 485,804,246
Changes in equity for 2010: 20105 2 EH%H .
Total comprehensive income ~ AF2MUEAE
for the year - - 8,268,694 - 29,791,743 - 38,060,437
Appropriation to PRC statutory A B2 B 5 30
reserve 22(d)(iv) - - - - (352,575 352,575 -
Dividends approved in BERS
respect of the
— previous year —#F 22(b) - - - - (16,329,458) - (16,329,458)
~ current year 3 22(b) - - - - (8,166,129) - (8,166,129)
Shares issued under BREZETZRN
share option scheme
- gross proceeds -Eha 22(c)ii) 8,780,188 3,508,938 - - - - 12,289,126
— transfer from capital reserve  —HEREEED - 2,088,113 - (2,088,113) = = =
Cancellation of share options ~ FUHE k& - - - (103,699) - - (103,699)

At 31 December 2010 and 20105127318
1 January 2011 R2011F181A 205,872,630 185,424,029 59,905,963 7,529,010 24,615,386 28,207,505 511,554,523

Changes in equity for 2011: 20112 EHEH .
Total comprehensive income  AF2EMNHAE

for the year - - 15,540,097 - 18,160,024 - 33,700,121
Appropriation to PRC HEAERERR

statutory reserve 22(d)(iv) - - - - (1,899,981) 1,899,981 -
Dividends approved in HERE

respect of the

~ previous year -fE 22(b) - - - - (17,037,490) - (17,037,490)

- current year -KE 22(b) - - - - (8,644,145) - (8,644,145)
Shares issued under BREDR BT 2R

share option scheme

— gross proceeds -Eh 22(c)(i) 10,231,000 3,864,620 - - - - 14,095,620

- transfer from capital reserve  —HEREEET - 2,414,016 - (2,414,016) - - -
Cancellation of share options BB &Rk 12 - - - (163,774) - - (163,774)
At 31 December 2011 W2011%12A31R 216,103,630 191,702,665 75,446,060 4,951,220 15,193,794 30,107,486 533,504,855
The notes on pages 51 to 130 form part of the BHNFES1BEEF10B 2 MZAEAKILEFRE M BEHRE 2

consolidated financial statements. — &5 o
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COhSOlidated CaSh ﬂOW Statemeht (for the year ended 31 December 2011)
%éfﬁﬁﬁiﬁ(E2§2011¢12531E|¢$J§)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(B REN)
2011 2010
Note HK$ HK$
B &t B JB
Operating activities RETE
Profit before taxation B 5 B 4t A1 24,255,578 37,103,754
Adjustments for: T
— Amortisation of interests in —EHBBRCERE
leasehold land held for own BIEER 2 TibiEs
use under operating leases 6(b) 413,457 394,102
— Depreciation — & 6(b) 32,636,373 27,175,704
— Equity-settled share-based —RERENRANERIER
payment transactions 6(a) (163,774) (103,699)
— Foreign exchange loss, net — [ N FE5 18 1,609,085 2,093,859
— (Reversal)/write-down of —(E#®) HREFEFE
inventories, net (3,666,388) 3,657,896
— Interest income —F B A 5 (1,774,960) (1,353,831)
— Net loss on disposal/write-off of —HEME  HEIHEE
property, plant and equipment ZFEE 5&6(b) 1,738,046 2,105,755
Operating profit before changes EEESEHALERR
in working capital 55,047,417 71,073,540

Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and other
receivables

b= PilIRER

IEINE 5 N Bl U AR IA

(26,399,504)

(14,226,630)

(31,515,415)

(58,462,944)

Increase in trade and other payables 1% 5 & H fb fE (- BR 18 54,792,569 66,630,946
Cash generated from operations REEL RS 69,213,852 47,726,127
Tax paid: RIEZ W

— Hong Kong profits tax paid —EAMNEHIZ L (86,620) (2,435,386)

— Overseas tax paid —BINRIE S H (6,090,878) (2,367,234)
Net cash generated from operating K& EBHE4A RS FE

activities 63,036,354 42,923,507
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ConSOIidated CaSh ﬂOW Statement (for the year ended 31 December 2011)

%éfﬁﬁﬁii (BZE2011F12A31H EEE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABYREN)
2011 2010
Note HK$ HK$
B &t B JB
Investing activities REED
Payment for the purchase of property, S EBE®WE - BE K&
plant and equipment B (48,612,045) (48,099,527)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWME - WEREE
plant and equipment Fr 1S 3018 341,552 454,703
Interest received A B WA 1,774,960 1,353,831
Net cash used in investing REZBHZHZESFE
activities (46,495,533)  (46,290,993)
Financing activities R & B
Proceeds from shares issued under  ZE1TEERER D 2 Uz
share option scheme 14,095,620 12,289,126
Dividends paid S ATRR B (26,702,797) (24,452,908)
Net cash used in financing MEIBIHZ2RSFEE
activities (12,607,177)  (12,163,782)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and #Bwm/ (B RER
cash equivalents RE&ZEEHER 3,933,644 (15,531,268)
Cash and cash equivalents MABE1BZEER
at 1 January HeZEEER 161,273,936 175,402,884
Effect of foreign exchange rate MEEXSBH2EE
changes 4,126,680 1,402,320
Cash and cash equivalents M12A31BEZEER
at 31 December RE&%EEH 17 169,334,260 161,273,936
The notes on pages 51 to 130 form part of the HNFES1EEFE10E 2 MTF REK L ZFHFEAS T BHREKZ
consolidated financial statements. — & e
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 4EZEhGNBRT ended 31 December 2011)
%éﬂjﬁﬁi BT‘JLEI (BZE2011F12A8318 L FE)

1 COMPANY INFORMATION

Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and
has its registered office and principal place of business
at Rooms 1801 — 1813, 18th Floor, Grandtech Centre,
8 On Ping Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements for year ended
31 December 2011 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Company. Note 3 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 29).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BUBBREM)

1 UNGIE-¢2

MREXARAB ([ARA) REBEMAYL - RA]E
3% B2 % £ REE IR E B R Y AR FH8RE
ZE 0 1811801-1813% ©

2 FESEBR
(a) HBHEH

HE2011F12AMH L FEZEEUBRRBIEARRF]
LEMBAR (HBIAEH]) 2KE -

WEFRAMBRRDIREMABERZEEY B HmEER
(IEAMBRELER ] F/H - WRAEARBIER LG
R ([BEEMAE ) BM2MEERZEREEM
BHEEA - FESERN([FAESEL]) 22
BERREARAUEBERTEII ZWERTE o ILFL
BMBBREANTEEABARSIMAERAAES TR
Al 2 B A RE R -

BEGHMASCRME THII RRETREMBRSE
B RAKBEARRZEA S B ERERLA

WA RA - AR ERLEMEREAEERT B
EETHEMER I T RREIMRRNZEFEE M
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {for the year EidsdlsTDecember 2011)
%éﬂjggﬁﬁ Bﬁﬁi (BZE2011F12A31B L EFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REA)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a) Statement of compliance (Continued)

A summary of significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group is set out below.

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 28.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. F|R&E%45R A7)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 4EZEhGNBRT ended 31 December 2011)
%éﬂjﬁﬁi BT‘JLEI (BZE2011F12A8318 L FE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(c) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable
are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(f)(i)).

(d) Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at

cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 2(f)(ii)).

The cost of construction in progress includes the cost
of machinery, materials, construction expenditures and
other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets
to a working condition for its intended use.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {for the year EidsdlsTDecember 2011)
%éﬂjggﬁﬁ Bﬁﬁi (BZE2011F12A31B L EFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REA)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, over their estimated useful lives
at the following annual rates:

Buildings held for own use which are
situated on leasehold land, where the
fair value of the building could be
measured separately from the fair value
of the leasehold land at the inception of
the lease (see note 2(e)(i))

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Moulds

Motor vehicles

4.0% - 4.5% straight line

9.0% - 18.0% straight line

9.0% - 33.3% straight line

9.0% straight line

25.0% reducing balance
and 18.0% straight line

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress is not depreciated until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

(e) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 4EZEhGNBRT ended 31 December 2011)
%éﬂjﬁiﬁi BT‘JLEI (BZE2011F12A8318 L FE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Leased assets (Continued)

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, except
where the land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon, is accounted for as being held under a finance
lease, unless the building is also clearly held under an
operating lease. For these purposes, the inception of
the lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.

(ii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term of 50 years. Impairment losses
are recognised in accordance with accounting policy
set out in note 2(f)(ii).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {for the year EidsdlsTDecember 2011)
%éﬂjggﬁﬁ Bﬁﬁi (BZE2011F12A31B L EFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REA)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(f)
(i)

Impairment of assets

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and receivables

Investments in equity securities and receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair

value of an investment in an equity investment
below its cost.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 4EZEhGNBRT ended 31 December 2011)
%éﬂjﬁiﬁi BT‘JLEI (BZE2011F12A8318 L FE)

(f)
(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as detailed below:

For investments in subsidiaries, the impairment
loss is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its carrying
amount in accordance with note 2(f)(ii). The
impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 2(f)(ii).

For trade and other receivables, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {for the year EidsdlsTDecember 2011)
%éﬂjggﬁﬁ Bﬁﬁi (BZE2011F12A31B L EFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REA)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(f)
(i)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade and other receivables directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment; and

pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held for own use under operating leases.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 4EZEhGNBRT ended 31 December 2011)
%éﬂjﬁiﬁi BT‘JLEI (BZE2011F12A8318 L FE)

(f)
(if)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of time
value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {for the year EidsdlsTDecember 2011)
%éﬂjggﬁﬁ Bﬁﬁi (BZE2011F12A31B L EFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REA)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(g) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all cost of purchases, cost of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense
in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 4EZEhGNBRT ended 31 December 2011)
%éﬂjﬁiﬁi BT‘JLEI (BZE2011F12A8318 L FE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(h) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see
note 2(f)(i)), except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at
cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
(i) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 2(m)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand and deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months of
maturity at acquisition.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {for the year EidsdlsTDecember 2011)
%éﬂjggﬁﬁ Bﬁﬁi (BZE2011F12A31B L EFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REA)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(k)
(i)

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

Contributions to mandatory provident fund as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and to retirement benefit schemes
for the employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in The
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) are recognised
as an expense in profit or loss as incurred.

(ii) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the Black
Scholes model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 4EZEhGNBRT ended 31 December 2011)
%éﬂjﬁﬁi BT‘JLEI (BZE2011F12A8318 L FE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Employee benefits (Continued)
(ii) Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained earnings).

()] Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case it is recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {for the year EidsdlsTDecember 2011)
%éﬂjggﬁﬁ Bﬁﬁi (BZE2011F12A31B L EFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REA)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()] Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will
arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
()] Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and is reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay
the related dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {for the year EidsdlsTDecember 2011)
%éﬂjggﬁﬁ Bﬁﬁi (BZE2011F12A31B L EFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REA)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()] Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

the same taxable entity; or

different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities
on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 2(m)(ii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {for the year EidsdlsTDecember 2011)
%éﬂjggﬁﬁ Bﬁﬁi (BZE2011F12A31B L EFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REA)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities (Continued)
(i) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 4EZEhGNBRT ended 31 December 2011)

e

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(n) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at
the customers’ premises which is taken to be the point
in time when the customer has accepted the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

(ii) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are earned.

(iii)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REM)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transactions dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to
that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to
profit and loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

(p) Product development costs

Expenditure on development activities, whereby
research findings are applied to a plan or design for the
production of new or substantially improved products
and processes, is capitalised if the product or process
is technically and commercially feasible and the Group
has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the
costs of materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Development expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(2) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(3) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(2) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(3) Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(4) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(5) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(q)
(i)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {for the year EidsdlsTDecember 2011)
%éﬂjggﬁﬁ M;JEI (BZE2011F12A31B L EFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REA)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a)
(i)

Related parties (Continued)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (i).

(7) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.
(r) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 4EZEhGNBRT ended 31 December 2011)
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3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
to HKFRSs and one new Interpretation that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements:

J HKAS 24 (revised), Related party disclosures
J Improvements to HKFRSs (2010)

HKAS 24 (revised) simplifies the definition of “related
party” and removes inconsistencies, which emphasises
a symmetrical view of related party transactions.
The revised standard also provides limited relief
from disclosure of information by government-related
entities in respect of transactions with the government
to which the group is related, or transactions with
other entities related to the same government. These
amendments have had no material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) omnibus standard
introduces a number of amendments to the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures. These amendments do not have any
material impact on the Group’s financial instruments in
these consolidated financial statements.

4 TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are the
manufacture and sale of electrical home appliances.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied
to customers, net of discounts, returns and value
added tax or other sales taxes.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {for the year EidsdlsTDecember 2011)
%éﬂjggﬁﬁ Bﬁﬁi (BZE2011F12A31B L EFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REA)

5 OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME 5 Hib A &3

2011 2010
HK$ HK$
B BB
Other revenue Hpg A
Bank interest income RITF B WA 1,774,960 1,353,831
Rentals receivable from operating leases HEBEROP 2BHERA
(note 26(b)) (Kt it26(b)) - 180,000
1,774,960 1,533,831
Other net income HihFW=
Gain on disposal of scrap materials HE R YW s 2,400,552 1,733,069
Net exchange gain M 5% W e 4,090,628 860,569
Net loss on disposal of property, plant LEME  BEK
and equipment RiEFEE (1,738,046) (930,472)
Refund of contributions to defined contribution FXEHFRKE
retirement plans sTEIR 5 - 2,582,754
Sample sales income BRAR M 25 808,014 588,065
Subsidy income 4 B W e 721,205 766,054
Sundry income H A 2 677,663 1,007,469
6,960,016 6,607,508
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(B REN)
6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 B %% A% R
Profit before taxation is arrived after charging/ B8 AEF T9&&0EK (T A) THI KB EER -
(crediting):
2011 2010
HK$ HK$
B BB
(a) Staff costs (a) EERZK
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TENEMER 164,861,245 126,688,809
Discretionary bonuses B 15 2% p 2 TEAT 1,345,000 1,521,500
Contributions to defined contribution EHHFRKE
retirement plans T EI K 19,907,517 11,210,801
Equity-settled share-based payment T 2 (8- IR 2N EL
transactions* BHE* (163,774) (103,699)
185,949,988 139,317,411

Certain share options previously granted to employees

. VAR SR 8 T 6 5500 B s A 1 02 e 8 A e T 0% Wk B s

were forfeited and the fair value of share options ZATEEHEAFEEEZERZ
forfeited was reclassified from capital reserve to profit
and loss.
2011 2010
HK$ HK$
B BB
(b) Other items (b) HtEE
Cost of inventories sold* THE 7 &R A 1,072,173,832 868,858,517
Amortisation of interests in leasehold land BIHRBCE R ERE
held for own use under operating leases BAZ TR 413,457 394,102
Depreciation = 32,636,373 27,175,704
Auditor’s remuneration =% SR BN & 616,000 613,000
Product development costs EmERKAK 892,393 698,657
Loss on write-off of property, plant and M- BREREE
equipment HEEE 1B - 1,175,283

Cost of inventories includes HK$185,588,302 (2010:
HK$141,695,986) relating to staff costs, depreciation
and loss on write-off of property, plant and equipment,
which amounts are also included in the respective
total amounts disclosed separately above or in note
6(a) for each of these types of expenses.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REA)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7

INCOME STATEMENT

REBRBERZAEH

(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) REAERKEIZHE

represents:
2011 2010
HK$ HK$
B BB
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax AEEBRE-FBHASH
Provision for the year (note 14(a)) NERANE (Kat14(a)) 1,676,547 3,381,738
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax AEEBHE-FECEMEH
Provision for the year (note 14(a)) IERAE (f it 14(a)) 4,825,757 5,453,222
Under-provision in respect of prior years TFEEREBBD 211 14,062
4,825,968 5,467,284
Deferred tax IEFERE
Origination and reversal of temporary BEEREEREZENELER
differences (note 14(b)(i)) ®E (K a214(b)(i)) (406,961) (1,537,011)
Income tax expense FER S H 6,095,554 7,312,011
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 4EZEhGNBRT ended 31 December 2011)
%éﬂjﬁiﬁi BT‘JLEI (BZE2011F12A8318 L FE)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (Continued)

Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents: (Continued)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is
calculated at 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) of the
estimated assessable profits for the year.

Taxation for subsidiaries outside Hong Kong
is charged at the appropriate current rate of
taxation ruling at the relevant tax jurisdictions.

Two subsidiaries in the PRC have been entitled
to preferential tax treatments in the PRC. Upon
the implementation of the Enterprise Income Tax
Law of the PRC on 1 January 2008, a five-year
transitional period had been granted to entities
that previously enjoyed the preferential tax rate
of 15%, over which the tax rate will gradually
be increased to the standard rate of 25%. The
applicable rate for these two subsidiaries in the
PRC for 2011 is 24% (2010: 22%).

The change in the carrying amount of the
deferred tax assets and liabilities, as a result
of the change in tax rate, is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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(a)

(i)

(ii)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BUBBREM)

REBRERZAEH (B)

REEEAERENNZHE : (8)

N

BEBMER I IRB AT E Gt ERT A AKX
16.5% (20104F : 16.5%) IR o

B B LA SN 2 I 2 B4 TR I I R
RITHEHE -

FHRRMENB AR ZAESFHEESR  BFE
AR FEMBE D EFEH CGhEE) R2008F1H1H
g REFBUEE BRI ZE15% BRI R 2 AL
ErEHEARZ AT AFH G R EEE
SHEREREZEIHER  EEBHAEREE
T R25% o A E B B A 7l R2011 6 /) B B Fi R
D Al B24% (20104 : 22%)

AREEHEFELERAEEERAB 2 REED
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements or the yoar ended 31 December 2011)
%éﬂjggﬁﬁ Bﬁﬁi (BZE2011F12A31B L EFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REA)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7

INCOME STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and  (b)

accounting profit at the applicable tax rates:

REBRERZAEH (B)

BRERBNERI D REFHRER

2011 2010
HK$ HK$
B BB
Profit before taxation B 75 A g A 24,255,578 37,103,754
Notional tax on profit before taxation, RERMRERTERGTEL
calculated at the rates applicable to profits BR A0 A i ) 42 = B 1E
in the jurisdictions concerned 5,399,396 7,104,107
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TNA IR W2 s 2 1,324,501 924,733
Tax effect of non-taxable income FRERTWAZ RIGZE (552,034) (140,965)
Tax effect of unused tax losses RIERRATFEE 2
not recognized M - 92
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously RFERLAEA] B E1E 2
not recognised W E = (172,431)
Under-provisions in respect of prior years, net 4 [Z 7% # &8 D 211 14,062
Effect of changes in tax rates MEB BB E (123,784) (370,906)
Effect of temporary differences not recognised KHERZEHEZE 2 FE 47,264 (46,426)
Others HAth - (255)
Actual tax expense BEREMEZ L 6,095,554 7,312,011
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 4EZEhGNBRT ended 31 December 2011)

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as

8

EEME
EEMORBEFTERAEHB161EHEDT :

%éﬂjﬁﬁi BT‘JLEI (B Z20115F12HA31H LFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BUBBREM)

follows:
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme 2011
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e 2k
e ERRER BHZEAL BHREHR BF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Chairman E
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae HE A EAE 120,000 17,540 80,000 - 217,540
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man HERLAE 140,000 3,247,126 200,000 184,000 3,771,126
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin AXBELE 140,000 2,497,540 200,000 138,000 2,975,540
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing Rig@Ls 120,000 1,390,500 150,000 61,000 1,721,500
Non-executive directors FHTES
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang B SET 120,000 - - - 120,000
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang EHEALE
(resigned on 3.1.2011) (201141 A3HFT) - - - = =
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng RRIFB LA
(appointed on 3.1.2011) (201151 A3H 1) 120,000 - - - 120,000
Ms. Li, Yinghong A NE 120,000 - - - 120,000
Independent non-executive BUFYTES
directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung PRI E 160,000 - - - 160,000
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BLELE 160,000 = = = 160,000
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming mRHTE 160,000 = = - 160,000
Alternate directors REZ
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun RITHELE = 161,230 = = 161,230
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit BRfRE - - - - -
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng RREEEE
(resiged on 3.1.2011) (201151 A3HBHE) - - - = -
1,360,000 7,313,936 630,000 383,000 9,686,936
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%éﬂjggﬁﬁ Bﬁﬁi (BZE2011F12A31HLELEE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AEaEREN)
8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8 EEME (5B)

(Continued)

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section TEEMMEREFTBSATEHIFE161EHEMT ¢

161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as
follows (continued):

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme 2010
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e W&

we RERER BEHIEL RASHR =H)

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

B B B B B
Chairman £
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae BEAEE 120,000 15,700 50,000 - 185,700
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man BRHLE 140,000 2,644,558 144,000 144,000 3,072,558
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin BENBELE 140,000 2,055,700 204,000 108,000 2,507,700
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing RE@iE 120,000 1,149,500 114,000 51,000 1,434,500
Non-executive directors FHTES
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang mEZEL 120,000 - - = 120,000
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang EHETE 160,000 - - = 160,000
Ms. Li, Yinghong ZRRAT/NE 120,000 - - - 120,000
Independent non-executive BYEHTES

directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung RRERE 160,000 - - - 160,000
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BLELRE 160,000 - - = 160,000
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming hEHLE 160,000 - - - 160,000
Alternate directors REES
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng BRFExE - - = = =
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun SR IT 5 A - 151,370 12,467 - 163,837
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit HABEAE = = = = -
1,400,000 6,016,828 524467 303,000 8,244,295
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (orte year ended 31 December 2011)

e

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST

EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
three (2010: three) are directors whose emoluments
are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the other two (2010: two)
individuals are as follows:

ﬂjﬁiﬁi BT‘JLEI (B Z20115F12HA31H LFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BUBBREM)

9 fEIRSHFMAL

AEBSUHZSHMA LR B3N (2010F : L) EE -
®EZME D HNKES - 88 T2Z (2010%F : 2fi) &=
HALZBMEHMAOT :

2011 2010

HK$ HK$

B JB M

Salaries and other emoluments e K& H b 1,277,517 1,139,730
Discretionary bonuses )15 B A AL 135,000 111,600
Retirement scheme contributions RIKEHFR 88,675 79,200
1,501,192 1,330,530

The emoluments of the two (2010: two) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following band:

BRI &= HMA 26 (20104 : 2f) IS ARIDH AT :

Number of individuals

2011 2010
A A&
HK$ Nil — HK$1,000,000 & = T = 8 #1,000,0007T 2 2
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%éﬂjggﬁﬁ M;JEI (BZE2011F12A31B L EFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REM)

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$18,160,024 (2010: HK$29,791,743)
and the weighted average number of 425,124,455
(2010: 403,893,202) ordinary shares in issue during
the year, calculated as follows:

10 BREAEF
(a) BRELXZRF

ERERBANZFERAEA 7Hx$w£i«<%¥ﬁ%m
A 75 #18,160,024 7T (20104 : B #29,791,7437T) iR
BEAZE T ﬁu%%@%%&425,124,455 (20104 :
403,893,202) L@ A% H o

Weighted average number of ordinary shares EERMEFGRE
2011 2010
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January M A1EBE#BT 2 B 411,745,260 394,184,884
Effect of share options exercised TEERE s ZE
(note 22(c)(ii)) (Bt a22(c)(ii)) 13,379,195 9,708,318
Weighted average number of ordinary shares /128318 2 @ N #E
at 31 December F AR B 425,124,455 403,893,202

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$18,160,024 (2010: HK$29,791,743)
and the weighted average number of 427,691,266
(2010: 411,035,999) ordinary shares, calculated as
follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(diluted)

(b) EBREBZERFN

EREBRN ZFAERUARR Tﬂﬁiﬁg\{ﬁﬁétﬁ%i‘%iﬁﬁu
75 #18,160,024 7T (20104 : & #£29,791,7437T) M p#E
F % 427,691 266(2010¢ 411,035,999) & i@ A% 5t

st

ﬁo

BB EF RS (85F)

2011 2010

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 12 318 2 E % = insE

at 31 December F AR B 425,124,455 403,893,202
Effect of deemed issue of shares under R IR AR B B AR 51 21 A

the Company’s share option scheme for TREVEZTROZTE

nil consideration (note 21) (K1:E21) 2,566,811 7,142,797
Weighted average number or ordinary M12H318 Z &k 2 i

shares (diluted) at 31 December YR e (85E) 427,691,266 411,035,999

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. F|R&E%45R A7)

82



Notes to the consolidated financial statements 4EZEhGNBRT ended 31 December 2011)

e

11 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture
and sale of electrical home appliances. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s senior management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has identified five reportable
segments on a geographical basis: Japan, United
States, the PRC, Europe and rest of the world. The
electrical home appliances are manufactured in the
Group’s manufacturing facilities located in the PRC.
The “rest of the world” segment covers sales of
electrical home appliances to customers in Australia,
Canada and Hong Kong.

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s senior executive management monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets included all tangible assets and
current assets with the exception of tax balances.
Segment liabilities included trade creditors, accrued
charges and other payables, with the exception of
tax balances and dividends payable, attributable to
the manufacture and sale activities of the individual
segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by
those segments and the expenses incurred by those
segments or which otherwise arise from other revenue
and net income, and the depreciation and amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments.
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,E\Zl'i%ﬁi BT‘JLEI (B Z20115F12HA31H LFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LM BB fr)
11 2HE
AEEFEL RS RNERAER - CIRELAER

REEBTHREEABRFTEDMRBA LD ED BERM
RAZEMN—BZTARES  AEERRXAER[EBHR
RS BA XE - PE - BUNRERSH - AEE
HEFRERLIRBETE - DR IERZMWERRE
HERAERERMN NMERXRRBEZIRF

(a) WX\ BEREE

DHWEMCREARNEESSETREREABHRFED
RENMDEDHERARBZEN —BZ2HTARE -
HME  AEBZSBETRERABNRATERESR
BEUREDMEEZEE BEMREE:

DHMEEREMARNEEMRBDEE  ETERERNA
%E BiHE - »HMEEERESREMENRBERIRE
BN BREER D BREG 2 AHEMNRIEREMRE -

WARSTHE2BAREDHAELE ZHERLRZEFD B
IEEX X HHZFDE ﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁl?\&@%ﬁ ME
EFEMBHMELE 2 H  UDEEZFDE
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {for the year EidsdlsTDecember 2011)
%éﬂjggﬁﬁ Bﬁﬁi (BZE2011F12A31B L EFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REM)
11 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

The measurement used for reporting segment profit
is “adjusted EBITDA” i.e. “adjusted earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation”. To
arrive at adjusted EBITDA, the Group’s earnings are
further adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as other head office or
corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
adjusted EBITDA, management is provided with
segment information concerning inter-segment sales,
interest income and expense from cash balances
managed directly by the segments, depreciation and
amortisation and additions to non-current segment
assets used by the segments in their operations. Inter-
segment sales are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar orders.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. F|R&E%45R A7)
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11 2HHKE (8)
(a) IPEE BERSEE)
BB 37 5 20 R BT R A 2 705 5 [ © S REBITDA] » BI[ 5%

SRS BUE  ERBENZERBAT] - BERD
FBEBITDA + A4 [ 2 3 3 8 5145 52 A R B 55 56 2
B (MEHEA RITRRA) E— S EH B -

BESAERMC AEEBITDAZ D RFE RSN - BIEE MR
HERAHEDE  MBEWARBDE - FTEREH
EXRSERTIERNIENEL LD B ZIFRE 7 &
BEZDHEN AMOMEHEZBERSEHINEES
2 B1& -
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (orte year ended 31 December 2011)
%éﬂji‘%iﬁi BT‘JLEI (BZE2011F12A8318 L FE)

11 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance for the year
is set out below.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BUBBREM)

7 EwE ()
DWEME AERAME)

11
(a)

FRARUKTASERSETREEABUADBEEIRRFT
ENRRBZEREINN T

Electrical home appliances

ZREE
United States The PRC Japan Europe Rest of the world Total
Y HE BE B HREH &t
2011 2010 2011 2010 201 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS 000
BRTL EETT BETT FETT BEFn ERTr BETn BRI BETr EETn BRFn EETn
Revenue from external customers ~ ¥I5V&F 2 JiA 387,034 355603 18,715 18439 407,097 301,658 230,705 201,801 131,969 89,063 1,175,520 966,564
Inter-segment revenue AERELON = - 760,887 610,849 - - - - 1,147,861 898,979 1,908,748 1,509,828
Reportable segment revenue TREDHRA 387,034 355603 779,602 629,288 407,097 301,658 230,705 201,801 1,279,830 988,042 3,084,268 2,476,392
Reportable segment profit TREA PR
(adjusted EBITDA) (EFREEBITDA) 15,991 20,799 774 1,079 16820 17,643 9532 11,803 284,635 224029 327,752 275,353
Reportable segment assets TREIPEE = - 496,642 431,964 - - - - 635193 396,133 1,131,835 828,097
Additions to non-current segment  AEEIERE S
assets during the year BEEN = - 48024 46,862 - - - - 588 1,238 48612 48,100
Reportable segment liabilities ~ THEABERE (247)  (247) (186,153) (132,487) - - - - (190311) (191997) (376,711) (324,731)
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%éﬂjggﬁﬁ Bﬁﬁi (BZE2011F12A31B L EFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REA)

11 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

11 2HHKE (8)
ESWBA - 185 BEREEZYHE

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b)

revenue, profit or loss, assets and
liabilities
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T VBT T
Revenue PN
Reportable segment revenue AR & o FUA 3,084,268 2,476,392
Elimination of inter-segment revenue M ER 9 B U AR 8 (1,908,748) (1,509,828)
Consolidated turnover RE LR 1,175,520 966,564
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T JBEM T T
Profit b |
Reportable segment profit Al R & 5 B A 327,752 275,353
Elimination of inter-segment profits A EB 3 &6 & A1 4K 35 (279,181) (218,820)
Reporting segment profit derived from Group’s %ﬁé$’$ EEIEFZ
external customers R o E0 R K 48,571 56,533
Other revenue and net income H At A K5 & 8,735 8,141
Depreciation and amortisation IrE M (33,050) (27,570)
Consolidated profit before taxation REBRT DG T 24,256 37,104
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (orte year ended 31 December 2011)
%éﬂji‘%iﬁi BTTJL%I (BZE2011F12A8318 L FE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

11 WHRE (B)

(BUBBREM)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) THREIBWA - RAKBE CTEREEZ
revenue, profit or loss, assets and AR (48)
liabilities (Continued)

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT

Assets EE
Reportable segment assets AR E D HEE 1,131,835 828,097
Elimination of inter-segment receivables A BB 5> 5P e U BR TR 4 8 (368,288) (139,797)
763,547 688,300
Tax recoverable AR B § 18 4,045 5,635
Deferred tax assets EAETRIBE E 9,224 8,378
Consolidated total assets MEREE 776,816 702,313
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$°000
B FT JBEMEF T

Liabilities &&
Reportable segment liabilities AmESHEE (376,711) (324,731)
Elimination of inter-segment payables A BB 75 5B FE 1 R 18 4K 35 136,985 139,797
(239,726) (184,934)
Dividends payable FE AR E (371) (1,392)
Tax payable JE& 1~ 35 I8 (3,007) (4,272)
Deferred tax liabilities BELEFREEE (207) (161)
Consolidated total liabilities REBAaE (243,311) (190,759)
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%éﬂjggﬁﬁ Bﬁﬁi (BZE2011F12A31HLELEE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AB¥REN)
11  SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 11 oEHE (5B)
(¢) Major customers (c) EEEF

Revenue from major customers, each of whom HIFrEBEFEMEZWA  EFF D MEHEIKA10%5 A

amounted to 10% or more of the total revenue, is set |« 50T :
out below:

2011 2010

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Customer A ZEA 416,756 309,251
Customer B =FB 267,357 185,485
Customer C =FEC 168,004 183,942
Customer D ZFD 166,565 122,182
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%éﬂjﬁ%ﬁi Bﬁﬁi (BZE2011F12A8318 L FE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(B REN)
12 FIXED ASSETS 12 EBEEEE
(@) The Group (a) Z~&£H
Interests in Interests in
leasehold leasehold
land land
held for own held for own
use under  Buildings Furniture, use under
Construction finance  heldfor  Plantand fixtures and Motor operating Total
in progress leases  ownuse machinery equipment  vehicles  Sub-total leases fixed assets
RENKEE RELERE
KEBR  KERR B KRR AEEEE
HRIR ziEE ZBEY HERKE %ERRG ot Nt 2R At
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
Cost; BA:
At 1 January 2010 R201051 18 5407,604 5285120 179,598,500 166,418,222 38,480,984 10,083,105 405,223,535 15,384,583 420,608,118
Exchange adjustments PRAEE 150,395 - 4208162 2,986,732 1424876 196912 8967,077 427,878 9,394,950
Additions =l 37,394,976 - - 3,061,362 530,602 2,312,497 48,099,527 - 48,099,527
Transfers g% (30,716,755) - - 20,422,560 10,294,195 - - - -
Disposalsfwrite off e /i - - - (9,040,717) (4,054,833) (2,303,710 (15,399,260 - (15,399,260)
Reclassification EEpE] - - - 47816 (47,816 = = = =
At 31 December 2010 20105125318 12,236,220 5,235,120 183,806,662 183,895,975 51,428,098 10,288,804 446,890,879 15,812,456 462,703,335
At 1 January 2011 R2011E1 A1 12,236,220 5,235,120 183,806,662 183,895,975 51,428,098 10,288,804 446,890,879 15,812,456 462,703,335
Exchange adjustments RBER 600,774 - 7635565 6,128455 3153456 315585 17,833835 776,360 18,610,195
Additions 2yl 23,296,157 - - 4784 20494249 2,816,855 48,612,045 - 48,612,045
Transfers &j (27,045,606) - - 15467215 11367874 210517 - - -
Disposals if3 = = - (2,114,143) (10,880,910)  (435,348) (13,430401) - (13,430,401)
At 31 December 2011 R2011E12/31H 9,087,545 5285120 191,442,227 203,382,286 77,562,767 13,196,413 499,906,358 16,588,816 516,495,174
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%éﬂjggﬁﬁ Bﬁﬁi (BZE2011F12A31B L EFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB AREL)
12 FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 12 EBEEEE (&)
(a) The Group (Continued) (a) FE&EE(E)
Interests in Interests in
leasehold leasehold
land land
held for own held for own
use under  Buildings Furniture, use under
Construction finance  heldfor  Plantand fixtures and Motor operating Total
in progress leases  ownuse machinery equipment  vehicles  Sub-total leases fixed assets
REGHESE RELERE
BEER  BEER i KRR AEEEE
HRIR ziEE ZBEY HERKE %ERRG ot Nt ZLibER At
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
Accumulated amortisation ZitEHRITE:
and depreciation:
At 1 January 2010 2010617418 - 1,361,130 97,475,424 100,135,785 20,920,129 7,905,673 227,798,141 5272273 233,070,414
Exchange adjustments RBRE - - 2214138 1,326,931 938,190 169,377 4,648,636 146,632 4,795,268
Charge for the year FEENE - 104702 8332330 12,613,321 5264534 860,817 27,175704 394,102 27,569,806
Written back on Y& 13
disposalsfwrite off - - - (7,361,258) (3,526,517) (1,951,027) (12,838,802) - (12,838,802)
At 31 December 2010 20105125318 - 1465832 108,021,892 106,714,779 23,596,336 6,984,840 246,783,679  5813,007 252,596,686
At 1 January 2011 R2011E1 A1 - 1465832 108,021,892 106,714,779 23,596,336 6,984,840 246,783,679  5813,007 252,596,686
Exchange adjustments R - - 4387992 2501028 1787421 236,783 8913224 285407 9,198,631
Charge for the year TEENE - 104702 8200,908 14,177,743 8986,261 1,166,759 32,636,373 413457 33,049,830
Disposals HE = = - (1,439,762) (9,576,456)  (334,585) (11,350,803) - (11,350,803)
At 31 December 2011 20115125318 - 1,570,534 120,610,792 121,953,788 24,793,562 8,053,797 276,982,473 6,511,871 283,494,344
Carrying value: RERE:
At 31 December 2011 201145125318 9,087,545 3,664,586 70,831,435 81428498 52,769,205 5,142,616 222,923,885 10,076,945 233,000,830
At 31 December 2010 R2010E12/31H 12,236,220 3,769,288 75,784,770 77,181,196 27,831,762 3,303,964 200,107,200 9,999,449 210,106,649
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (orte year ended 31 December 2011)
%éﬂji‘%iﬁi BT‘JLEI (BZE2011F12A8318 L FE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(B REN)
12 FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 12 EBEEEE (&)
(b) The Company (b) ZA2F
Furniture,
Plant and fixtures and Motor
machinery equipment vehicles Total
&HF
BMERKE RERIR®E RE ast
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BB B BB BB
Cost: A
At 1 January 2010 7K2010%F1 H1H 27,127,161 62,600 2,067,673 29,257,434
Additions 30 - - 1,238,221 1,238,221
Disposals HE - - (380,000) (380,000)
At 31 December 2010, R2010F12A31H -
1 January 2011 and 2011F1H1B &
31 December 2011 2011F12H31H 27,127,161 62,600 2,925,894 30,115,655
Accumulated depreciation: Z&HIiTE :
At 1 January 2010 720101 H1H 20,476,705 48,860 1,012,156 21,537,721
Charge for the year KEEHE 3,350,595 4,580 533,357 3,888,532
Written back on disposals & #[q] - - (219,688) (219,688)
At 31 December 2010 7K2010F12A31H 23,827,300 53,440 1,325,825 25,206,565
At 1 January 2011 R2011F1 518 23,827,300 53,440 1,325,825 25,206,565
Charge for the year KEEHE 2,373,981 4,580 400,017 2,778,578
At 31 December 2011 R2011F12H31H 26,201,281 58,020 1,725,842 27,985,143
Carrying value: BR A ¢
At 31 December 2011 720115 12H31H 925,880 4,580 1,200,052 2,130,512
At 31 December 2010 7201012 H31H 3,299,861 9,160 1,600,069 4,909,090
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REA)

12 FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

12 BEEEE(8)

(c) The analysis of carrying value of properties (c) Y¥:BREFEINWT :

is as follows:

The Group
AEE
2011 2010
HK$ HK$
B JE B
Medium-term leases FHAEE
—in Hong Kong — &5 12,518,780 13,409,372
— outside Hong Kong — BB AN 72,054,186 76,144,135
84,572,966 89,553,507
Representing: 4K -
Buildings held for own use FEE REEY 70,831,435 75,784,770
Interests in leasehold land held for BEGBHEREERZ
own use under finance leases T 3,664,586 3,769,288
Interests in leasehold land held for own BESEHEREERZ
use under operating leases THb S 10,076,945 9,999,449
84,572,966 89,553,507
13 INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS 13 MIBARBREREW KB QAKRE
DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES
The Company
b /N
2011 2010
HK$ HK$
B JE B
Unlisted shares, at cost E LMD - TR EAR 232,136,882 232,136,898
Less: impairment loss B R EEE (780,577) (780,567)
231,356,305 231,356,331
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE WL B B A RIBR IR 110,625,476 106,054,965
Less: impairment losses o R EEE (37,734,536) (37,734,536)
72,890,940 68,320,429
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAT BT /8 A RIBRIE (25,835,900) (26,761,372)

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured,

interest free and repayable on demand.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. F|R&E%45R A7)

92



Notes to the consolidated financial statements (orte year ended 31 December 2011)
%éﬂji‘%iﬁi BT‘JLEI (BZE2011F12A8318 L FE)

13 INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS
DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results,
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares
held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BUBBREM)

13 ﬁgﬁﬁ&ﬁ&@%/ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ

mE

FERNEBZXE BENRABZMBRARFHBMOT -
BREFRIZIH - RSB 2 RERE B -

Proportion
Particulars of of ownership
Place of issued and paid interest held by
Name of company Place of incorporation operation up capital the Company  Principal activities
BRR RAKE
NAER b Repy ArRBAZHE FARERZERE IEXE
Guangzhou Conquest Electric Company Limited * The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100%  Manufacture and sale
ENRARBEEBERA A i i US$7,390,000 of electrical home
ZER appliances
7,390,000% T RERHEFRES
Mass Top Corporation British Virgin Hong Kong 1 share of 100%  Property holding
Islands BA US$1 REME
RBRZS REBRERIZT
Raymond Electric (China) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 2 shares of 100%  Trading of electrical
MEREHEE(PE) BRAR A Ak HK$10 home appliances
MEBRERI0ET ZREZES
Raymond (Panyu Nansha) Electrical Appliances The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100%  Manufacture and sale
Development Company Limited * US$22,380,000 of electrical home
IR (ZBRED) ERERERAF HE HE FMEA appliances
22,380,000% 7 RERHERRES
# The statutory financial statements of Guangzhou ENRIRAERERATIRIE (BEEEY) ERRRE

Conquest Electric Company Limited and Raymond
(Panyu Nansha) Electrical Appliances Development
Company Limited for the financial year ended 31
December 2011, prepared under generally accepted
accounting principles applicable in the PRC, have
been audited byE /N X E &5V E L FTE R A 7.

BRAREZ2011F12A318 It 2 FEMBRKRIEZH
AR EEABRMNEDSHMEBAERA A
FEiz o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABERHEN)
14 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE 14 REEEBRNAESB
SHEET
(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet (a) ¥ESBRZFBH :
represents:
The Group The Company
r5E b /N
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
B B B B
Provision for the year (note 7(a)) ZNEE &G (f1:17(a))
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BREH 1,676,547 3,381,738 1,610,633 3,285,900
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HECEMRER 4,825,757 5,453,222 - =
6,502,304 8,834,960 1,610,633 3,285,900
Provisional tax paid FHF S
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BEER (95,836)  (2,537,945) - (2,432,891)
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HBEIREMREN (1,818,683)  (1,181,237) - =
(1,914,519)  (3,719,182) - (2,432,891)
4,587,785 5,115,778 1,610,633 853,009
Net provisional tax paid relating ~ EFEMGEHREEHE
to prior years (5,625,679)  (6,478,688)  (5,625,679)  (6,478,688)
(1,037,894)  (1,362,910)  (4,015,046)  (5,625,679)
The Group The Company
r5E b /N
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
B B B B
Tax recoverable recognised REEEEBXREER
in the balance sheet AREFIA 4,044,968 5,634,895 4,015,046 5,625,679
Tax payable recognised REEBBREERZ
in the balance sheet e HE IR (3,007,074)  (4,271,985) - -
1,037,894 1,362,910 4,015,046 5,625,679
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14 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE
SHEET (Continued)
(@) Current taxation in the balance sheet

represents: (Continued)

The tax payable has been classified as under current
liabilities at 31 December 2011. The corresponding
balance at 31 December 2010, previously net off with
the amount of tax recoverable at 31 December 2010,
has been reclassified to conform with current year’'s
presentation. The directors consider that this revised
presentation more appropriately reflects the nature of
the balances.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB RER)
14 REESERERMNAEH (B)
(a) BEREXRZHEH(E)

MR2011F12H31H ERNBREARDEEFIER R R
201012 H31H 2 BB s 5E/E2010F12 H31 H Ay Al iR [E
HEFUFERTACAFTFEZRAMEY - EERA
UtESIE R R AT 2 S o

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERRELEHELEREE :
The Group The Company
r&EE PN
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BE B B B
Net deferred tax assets REEBBRE®R
recognised in the balance ELERIEEE
sheet (9,223,883)  (8,378,308) - -
Net deferred tax liabilities REEBEBEREERZ
recognised in the balance ELEFEAE
sheet 207,037 161,190 148,242 148,242
(9,016,846)  (8,217,118) 148,242 148,242
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%éﬂjggﬁﬁ Bﬁﬁi (BZE2011F12A31B L EFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB AREL)

14 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE
SHEET (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised: (Continued)

(i) The Group

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the
movements during the year are as follows:

14 REEEBXRNABH (E)
(b) CRIELHEBEERERE: (B)
(i) KEE

AEERGREERBRTERAZELEREB(BE)
BEMNERREZSH ZFIHTOT

Depreciation

allowances
in excess of Other
the related temporary
Deferred tax arising from: Tax loss depreciation differences Total
WEZEA
BEEZEEMR: BHEFE REBHRE HtEZEER CE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B
At 1 January 2010 7201051 H1H (274,467) (18,362)  (6,214,444)  (6,507,273)
Effect of changes in exchange rates &%) v 52 - - (172,834) (172,834)
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss & F 3k E51E 2
(note7(a)) ek (GEA) (Hfit7(a)) 65,019 10,370  (1,612,400)  (1,537,011)
At 31 December 2010 720104127318 (209,448) (7,992)  (7,999,678)  (8,217,118)
At 1 January 2011 R2011F1A1H (209,448) (7,992)  (7,999,678) (8,217,118)
Effect of changes in exchange rates H &5 2 52 - - (392,767) (392,767)
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss 7% Al sk & 18 2
(note 7(a)) me/(GEA) (B1it7(a))  (14,447) 60,107 (452,621) (406,961)
At 31 December 2011 R2011512A318 (223,895) 52,115  (8,845,066)  (9,016,846)

At 31 December 2011, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses
of HK$35,000 (2010: HK$35,000), and deferred tax
liabilities relating to temporary differences of HK$Nil
(2010: HK$281,370).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BUBBREM)

14 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE 14 REEEBRWABH (B)

SHEET (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) CHREZEREBLERERS: (&)

recognised: (Continued)

(i) The Company (i)  ARAF]

The Company’s deferred tax liabilities arise from AFEREGE

BERERSTOEAZCETEHBRED

depreciation allowances in excess of the related #AXERBEITEZHAREBITE - AFERFEH) -

depreciation. There were no movements during the
year.

15 INVENTORIES 15 #E

(a) Inventories in the balance sheet comprise: (a) 7#&FE&:

The Group The Company
A%EE ART

2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B
Raw materials JR 1 %} 81,230,808 80,692,022 378,008 1,009,559
Work in progress K fm 74,249,273 44,722,167 - -
Finished goods ERXm - - - -
155,480,081 125,414,189 378,008 1,009,559
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)
15 INVENTORIES (Continued) 15 FE (&)

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) #FELEZHNOCEEIABAWT :
recognised as an expense is as follows:

The Group
KEH

2011 2010

HK$ HK$

B BB
Carrying amount of inventories sold FEHEKREE 1,075,840,220 865,200,621
Write-down of inventories FERE 2,825,290 6,066,248
Reversal of write-down of inventories e RIENCIE (6,491,678) (2,408,352)

1,072,173,832 868,858,517

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16 EZRHMEWIRE

The Group The Company
AEE ¥ YN
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Trade debtors BHEBA 180,717,571 170,034,253 172,162,641 166,294,041
Other debtors HER A 11,032,297 8,427,796 5,160,344 1,500,252
Deposits and prepayments HEN S5 ¢ 13,982,155 13,043,344 1,907,608 1,893,214

205,732,023 191,505,393 179,230,593 169,687,507

All of the trade and other receivables, apart from FFEZ S LKEMMEWKEE KRIEHixs LB BE
certain deposits amounting to HK$2,491,273 (2010:  2,491,2737T (20104 : j&#2,783,1487T) 4) - I ER
HK$2,783,148), are expected to be recovered or T EKEREER -

recognised as expenses within one year.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AB¥AREEN)
16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16 BB HMEWERE (&)
(Continued)
(a) Ageing analysis (a) BRERD
Included in trade and other receivables are trade WAEEGBRAZOPEZEINEMEKEERZESE
debtors with the following ageing analysis as of the ABREZERESTOT :
balance sheet date:
The Group The Company
rEH ¥ NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B
Current N 161,292,188 125,921,159 152,737,258 122,537,565
Less than 1 month past due #HR D pA 1 (8 A 16,699,286 38,533,957 16,699,286 38,177,339
1 to 3 months past due #1118 A 2=31E A 1,751,892 5,363,793 1,751,892 5,363,793
More than 3 months but # B RB3(E A B
less than 12 months past due DiM2{E A 960,335 215,344 960,335 215,344
More than 12 months past due wHA R R 1 21E A 13,870 = 13,870 =
Amounts past due BHS 19,425,383 44,113,094 19,425,383 43,756,476
180,717,571 170,034,253 172,162,641 166,294,041

Trade debtors are due within 30 to 90 days from the
date of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit
policy are set out in note 24(a).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB AREL)

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

(b) Trade debtors that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired
are as follows:

16 ESRHMEWRE (&)

(b) REBEZEZBEHA

BREBAZREDMAR B RO K EILRENT :

The Group The Company
rEH ¥ NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B
Neither past due nor impaired BAEBESRE 161,292,188 125,921,159 152,737,258 122,537,565
Less than 1 month past due #HR D pA 1 (8 A 16,699,286 38,533,957 16,699,286 38,177,339
1 to 3 months past due B 1 {8 A =36 H 1,751,892 5,363,793 1,751,892 5,363,793
More than 3 months but less B HAE A3E AR
than 12 months past due DM 2{E A 960,335 215,344 960,335 215,344
More than 12 months past due B HAHE R 1 21E A 13,870 = 13,870 =
Amounts past due BHS 19,425,383 44,113,094 19,425,383 43,756,476
180,717,571 170,034,253 172,162,641 166,294,041
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired [EWBEIE S G E S BERNBNDEFIZE /R D -

relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(B REN)
17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17 BHERREEEER
The Group The Company
rEE b N
2011 2010 2011 2010
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HKS
B B B B
Bank deposits RITEHER 23,261,756 46,514,921 23,261,757 46,514,921
Cash at bank and in hand RITEFRRS 146,072,504 114,759,015 93,889,552 41,582,543
169,334,260 161,273,936 117,151,309 88,097,464
18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 18 EBEZRHMEFMNIKRIE
The Group The Company
rEE b /N
2011 2010 2011 2010
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
Trade creditors BHEEA 191,170,540 141,854,188 142,409,695 113,953,716
Accrued charges and &R RE A
other payables e BR I8 48,555,390 43,079,173 12,408,502 9,415,260
239,725,930 184,933,361 154,818,197 123,368,976
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REM)

18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(Continued)

All of the trade and other payables are expected to
be settled within one year. Included in trade and other
payables are trade creditors with the following ageing
analysis as of the balance sheet date:

18 EFNREMENSIRE(E)

FrEBSREMEMEREMERNS REEABRBRA
BERH BEESMNEMEMEETINE SEREAZERER
DT :

The Group The Company
AEH KAF
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BB B B
Due within 1 month 116 A R EI 85k,
or on demand REK 188,354,243 131,263,153 141,092,070 105,865,522
Due after 1 month but 1@ A& 1B31@ A A
within 3 months gl =i 2,116,506 9,848,378 1,317,625 8,008,632
Due after 3 months 3fEA®%RE12( AR
but within 12 months E| 5 505,082 547,948 - 79,562
Due after 12 months 1218 A 12 5 4 194,709 194,709 - -
191,170,540 141,854,188 142,409,695 113,953,716

19 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION
RETIREMENT PLANS

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The scheme is
administered by an independent trustee.

Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group and
the eligible employees make monthly mandatory
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory
contributions by each party are subject to a maximum
of HK$1,000 per month. Contributions to the scheme
vest immediately upon the completion of service in the
relevant service period.
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AEBRELREMEAEE BRI BRIEFEER K
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19 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION
RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

In addition to the MPF Scheme, the Group’s employees
in Hong Kong, after completing half a year of service,
have the option to join the Group’s defined contribution
provident fund scheme which is managed by an
independent trustee. The Group makes monthly
contributions of 5% — 10% of the employees’ basic
salaries to the scheme depending on the employees’
years of service with the Group. The employees also
make monthly contributions of 5% of the employees’
basic salaries to the scheme. The employees are
entitled to receive their entire contributions together
with accrued interest thereon at any time upon leaving
the Group, and 100% of the employer’s contributions
and the accrued interest upon retirement or leaving
the Group after completing sixteen years of service
or at a reducing scale of between 5% to 90% after
completing three to fifteen years of service. The
forfeited contributions made by the Group and related
accrued interest can be used to reduce the employer’s
contributions. During the year, the aggregate amount
of employer’s contributions made by the Group to
this scheme was approximately HK$445,840 (2010:
HK$418,280) and there was no forfeited contributions
available to reduce the contributions payable by the
Group in future years. At 31 December 2011, the
Group’s contributions to the provident fund scheme
and the interest accrued thereon amounted to
approximately HK$13,546,000 (2010: HK$13,105,000).

At 31 December 2011, certain employees of the
Group had completed the required number of years of
service under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
(the “Ordinance”) and are eligible for long service
payments on termination of their employment. The
Group is only liable to make such payments when the
termination meets the required circumstances specified
in the Ordinance and the employees’ entitlement is
not covered by the aforesaid provident funds. At 31
December 2011, the Group’s contributions to the
provident funds and the accrued interest thereon
exceeded the potential liabilities should the required
circumstances specified in the Ordinance be met.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BUBBREM)

19 REHRIFBMAKEE (E)

BEaEestE AEERENBEARBIESAE
ETERAEAR RENMARNEBZIEZBIE
PRRIBEBZAESHE - AEEREIFEART TR
5%ZE10%1E A A RIMER @ 8 TR EFH S :HE5%EA
BETHA EETHRE ZEBETHITREEE2SHET
HEERTAERRZFEFERE QA HREFR S - A
THERTAEE  AUBRE 2SR RER . mITEH=
FE+RFE  AHEZAMEREE5%E90%:H ©
BIRBEE RN AREREANETAEENARZ
WK o NEFAREE 2 34 % 445,8407T (20104 -
& #418,2807T) ° FERFIE AR WEFTER B A FEAE
EHZFNG - R2011FE12A31B AEBH A E L2
YEH 2 3R K Fl 8R40 & 75 %13,546,0007T (20104 :
75 5 113,105,000 ) ©

£2011F12H318 - A5 BE MM E THRBFHD =
EEBEFBEG (TEGDMRE  EEEATERA
ZERHARES  AMELKNEEZBRT  ~&E
BNz EEAZEIBZERETEXHERHR
BeMER EMERELGAH 2 E THE  A&5B8E
2011F12 A1 B ERE LT8R R F 2 RIEZ FMEHIR
EZBEARE-
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

19 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION
RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate
in defined contribution retirement schemes covering
its full-time PRC employees. The schemes are
administered by the relevant government authorities
in the PRC. The Group and the PRC employees
are required to make contributions based on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs as
stipulated under the requirements in the PRC and the
relevant government authorities undertake to assume
the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC.

20 BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had unsecured
revolving banking facilities of HK$68,150,000 (2010:
HK$60,150,000). The banking facilities include
documentary letters of credit, trust receipt, bill
payables, trade loans and trade guarantee. The
amount utilised by the Group as at 31 December
2011 under these facilities was HK$11,548 (2010:
HK$45,871).
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19 REHRIFBAKEE (E)

AEEEFENMBARATEATEEAZBE TRY
BRIREKRETE - A BIRPERFABMFIEE - A&
BLETFRUAEREESREBF S —EBADLIE
R - A BT AGE A E AR B ET B A E A A
ERBERRIERE T ZRKBNEE -

20 HRITEEHEE

E2011F12A318 ' A BERRTES 2 EBRKFESR
B E 4 57 #68,150,0007T (20104 : /& #60,150,000
TL) c MITZEERENARGERTL - E5KE  BEHE
B BZERRESGER RABHECRAEERELN A
#511,5487T (20104F : & %45,87170)
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21 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which
was adopted on 6 June 2003 whereby the directors
of the Company are authorised, at their discretion,
to invite (i) directors, employees of any member
of the Group or any controlling shareholder of the
Company (“Controlling Shareholder”) or any company
controlled by a Controlling Shareholder; (ii) holder of
any securities issued by any member of the Group or
any Controlling Shareholder of the Company or any
company controlled by a Controlling Shareholder;
and (iii) (a) any business or joint venture partner,
contractor, agent or representative of, (b) any supplier
of goods or services to, or (c) any customer or
distributor of goods or service of, any member of the
Group or any Controlling Shareholder or a company
controlled by a Controlling Shareholder; to take up
options to subscribe for shares of the Company. A
nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is paid by these
participants for each lot of share options granted. The
options are exercisable from the date of grant within
a period of eight to ten years. Each option gives the
holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in
the Company.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BUBBREM)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {for the year EidsdlsTDecember 2011)
%éﬂjggﬁﬁ Bﬁﬁi (BZE2011F12A31B L EFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REA)

21 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 21

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as (a)

BEENUROHBERER (F)

ERFERTZERMAT - Eik A BRELE

follows: BTz REERN -
Number of  Contractual life
instruments of options
IR R
IAYE BYOEH
Options granted to directors: BREXTES :
—on 21 June 2005 —R2005F6 A21H 10,660,000 8 years
—on 30 June 2008 — 12200846 A30H 23,461,488 10 years
— on 6 October 2009 —R2009F10H6H 18,901,488 10 years
Options granted to employees: BREXTEE
—on 21 June 2005 — 200546 A21H 6,371,000 8 years
— on 30 June 2008 — 1200846 H30H 9,830,000 10 years
— on 6 October 2009 —7R2009F1086H 16,085,000 10 years
Options granted to other eligible persons: BREXTEERAL
—on 21 June 2005 —R2005F6 A21H 770,000 8 years
— on 30 June 2008 — 12200846 A30H 6,095,000 10 years
— on 6 October 2009 —R2009F10H6H 4,400,000 10 years
Total share options HEE M 96,573,976

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. F|R&E%45R A7)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 4EZEhGNBRT ended 31 December 2011)
%éﬂjﬁiﬁi BT‘JLEI (BZE2011F12A8318 L FE)

21 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise
prices of share options are as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BUBBREM)

21 BEHEMUAROCHBE#REE (B)

(b) BREZBENNEFHTEEDT

2011 2010
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
35 IR R hiFE S B
TEE ZHE I1EE ZHE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ 000
B T BB Fhz
Outstanding at the beginning FHURTE
of the year 0.824 60,267 0.795 78,707
Granted during the year REERT - = = -
Exercised during the year REEFITHE 0.689 (20,462) 0.700 (17,560)
Forfeited during the year REF RN 1.136 (1,340) 0.687 (880)
Outstanding at the end of REFIERTTR
the year 0.885 38,465 0.824 60,267
Exercisable at the end of REZ EAATE
the year 0.885 38,465 0.824 60,267

The options outstanding at 31 December 2011 had an
exercise price of HK$0.630, HK$0.910 and HK$2.425
(2010: HK$0.630, HK$0.910 and HK$2.425) and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 6.6
years (2010: 7.7 years).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {for the year EidsdlsTDecember 2011)
%éﬂjggﬁﬁ Bﬁﬁi (BZE2011F12A31B L EFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REA)

21 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted is measured
based on a Black Scholes model. The contractual life
of the share option is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the
Black Scholes model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

21 BEHEMUAROCHBE#REE (B)

(c) BREZAFERRR
AELBREMEX ZRB A FEDZSEREEER
BAFEME - AREBREZ G AFEDRESR
BAE - BREZENFHDERIIARN 28 AJE
EHRETETEAREEHELN

BREZDAFERRBRR

Date of grant

®¥ A H
21 June 2005 30 June 2008 6 October 2009
2005%6H21H 20086 H30H 2009F10H6H
Fair value at measurement date R ERHZATE HK$0.3884/570  HK$0.13685/57c  HK$0.112957 T
Share price BB HK$2.4000/57C  HK$0.90000/57C  HK$0.610007% 7t
Exercise price 1% E HK$2.42507%5 70  HK$0.91000/57C  HK$0.630007%5 T
Expected volatility (expressed as BHRE (UE2HEXET
weighted average volatility % E AR ANEE S
used in the modelling under the RIERT)
Black Scholes model) 8.46% 36.94% 44.579%
Option life (expressed as weighted BREFH(UNEHEXE
average volatility used in the TREMAMETSH
modelling under the Black RIERT)
Scholes model) 2 yearsF 3 years 3 years
Expected dividends RHRE 6.80% 6.67% 8.20%
Risk-free interest rate I3 B ) R 3.28% 2.87% 0.931%

The expected volatility is based on the historical
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for any
expected changes to future volatility based on publicly
available information. Expected dividends are based
on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

There were no market conditions associated with the
share option grants.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (orte year ended 31 December 2011)
%éﬂji‘%iﬁi BT‘JLEI (BZE2011F12A8318 L FE)

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS

(@) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the Group’s

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BUBBREM)

22 EBEX -FEERRE

(a) HEDAKNONEB

R E B AR A #E g A B 8 48 BB 10 B9 B 90 70 B OR 4 R 0 B
R BN ARBEESR - TR AL EER#Ea

consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated 4B/ B0 E ¥ ELE R B ENE1S ¢
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes
in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
The Company ¥ NN
Share Share Retained Capital Total
capital premium earnings reserve equity
[ RxiaE BB EXfif CHE §:
Note HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
Mt B Vil BE BE Vil
At 1 January 2010 20101418 197,002,442 179,826,978 27,339,643 7,658,326 411,917,389
Changes in equity for 2010: 2010 EHE#F
Profit and total comprehensive ~ AEEF| k2 ARFELE
income for the year - - 17,624,230 - 17,624,230
Dividends approved in BERS
respect of the
- current year N3 22(b)(i) - - (8,166,129 - (8,166,129)
- previous year 5 22(b)(ii) - - (16,329,458) - (16,329,458)
Shares issued under share BRESET R
option scheme
- gross proceeds —ElaE 8,780,188 3,508,938 - - 12,289,126
— transfer from capital -HERREEY
reserve - 1,669,281 - (1,669,281) -
At 31 December 2010 1#2010612A31H 205,872,630 185,005,197 20,468,286 5,989,045 417,335,158
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND

Notes to the consolidated financial statements or the yoar ended 31 December 2011)
%éﬂjggﬁﬁ Bﬁﬁi (BZE2011F12A31B L EFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(@) Movements in components of equity

(Continued)

22 EBEX- -FHEERE(E)

(a) HEHARBOEE (E)

The Company (Continued) AT (E)
Share Share Retained Capital Total
capital premium earnings reserve equity
R& RAEE REER EXGE CHE $5
Note HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
Hi# Vit 4 Vil 4 Vil Vil BE
At 1 January 2011 R 2011%£181A 205,872,630 185,005,197 20,468,286 5,989,045 417,335,158
Changes in equity for 2011:  2011EZ%H :
Profit and total comprehensive ~ AEEFI k2 ARFELE
income for the year - - 20,307,640 - 20,307,640
Dividends approved in BERS
respect of the
- current year N3 22(b)(i) - - (8,644,145) - (8,644,145)
— previous year -5 22(b)(ii) - - (17,037,490) - (17,037,490)
Shares issued under share BREDET2BRH
option scheme
- gross proceeds —ElaE 10,231,000 3,864,620 - - 14,095,620
— transfer from capital -HERREEY
reserve - 1,709,569 - (1,709,569) -
Cancellation of share options ~ EUE &R - - - (77,558) (77,558)
At 31 December 2011 ®2011%512831H 216,103,630 190,579,386 15,094,291 4,201,918 425,979,225

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. F|R&E%45R A7)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (orte year ended 31 December 2011)
%éﬂji‘%iﬁi BTTJL%I (BZE2011F12A8318 L FE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BUBBREM)

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 22 EX -FERRE(E)
DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(b) Dividends by KR

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) NEEFEN AL S B L 5] iR T ENY
Company attributable to the year

2011 2010
HK$ HK$
B B
Interim dividend declared and paid BB kK2 ERE
of 2 HK cents per ordinary share 5% T i RS w21l
(2010: 2 HK cents per ordinary share) (20105 : R E @B E20L) 8,644,145 8,166,129
Final dividend proposed after the balance REEABREEREERZ
sheet date of 4 HK cents per ordinary share N HA P B R i AR S B 44
(2010: 4 HK cents per ordinary share) (20104 : R BIREEAL) 17,288,290 16,469,810
25,932,435 24,635,939
The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet RNEEBGBEXREEREZEZSMEERIARINEESR
date has not been recognised as a liability at the EXREHEARERREE-

balance sheet date.

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i)  FEFZfENTIRE £ K2 ] IR JE 15 K E N F /2
Company attributable to the previous financial EH#HER AT
year, approved and paid during the year

2011 2010
HK$ HK$
B oy
Final dividend in respect of the previous CEERBEEAFEDHAE
financial year, approved and paid during R AR T @RS B4l
the year, of 4 HK cents per ordinary share (20104 : FR T MAREEEANL)
(2010: 4 HK cents per ordinary share) 17,037,490 16,329,458
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {for the year EidsdlsTDecember 2011)
%éﬂjggﬁﬁ Bﬁﬁi (BZE2011F12A31B L EFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(c) Share capital

(i) Authorised and issued share capital

22 EBEX- -FHEERE(E)

() E=

(i) ZEEREFTRA

2011 2010
Number of Number of
shares HKS$ shares HK$
RESE B g = JB B
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of SREERALTER
HK$0.50 each 1,000,000,000 500,000,000 1,000,000,000 500,000,000
Ordinary shares, issued ZER CRIEBE:
and fully paid:
At 1 January »1A1H 411,745,260 205,872,630 394,184,884 197,092,442
Shares issued under BREET RN
share option scheme 20,462,000 10,231,000 17,560,376 8,780,188
At 31 December W2 A31H 432,207,260 216,103,630 411,745,260 205,872,630

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard
to the Company’s residual assets.

(i) Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2011, options
exercised resulted in 20,462,000 (2010: 17,560,376)
ordinary shares being issued, with exercised proceeds
of HK$14,095,620 (2010: HK$12,289,126). The related
weighted average share price at the time of exercise
was HK$0.88 (2010: HK$0.88).

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. F|R&E%45R A7)

EBRRBEABRIRERMERNKE  XAEERAK
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(i) BREZEITZRG

B ZE2011F12A31BFEE L RA R A LB EBEK
14,095,620 T (20104 : /& #12,289,1267T) 17 1F i A%
8 §20,462,000/% & & % (20104 : 17,560,376/% X &
f&) o F7{E B HY pN 4 F 3B BB %0.887T (20104 : B
0.887T) °

112
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%éﬂji‘%iﬁi BT‘JLEI (BZE2011F12A8318 L FE)

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)

(iii)  Terms of unexpired and unexercised share
options at balance sheet date

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB REN)

22 EBEX- -FHEERE(E)

(c) mE&(E)

(i) REERBEBEXEEHIRIBRAKRTRERE

Exercise 2011 2010

Exercise period price Number Number

1T 1TE(E BE HE

21 June 2005 to 5 June 2013 200566 H21H & HK$2.425 1,015,000 1,215,000

2013566 H5H

30 June 2008 to 29 June 2018 200846 H30H = HK$0.910 28,525,600 33,967,600
201846 H29H

6 October 2009 to 5 October 2019 200910 H6H & HK$0.630 8,925,000 25,085,000
20194 10H5H

38,465,600 60,267,600

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company. Further details of these
options are set out in note 21.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium reserve

The application of the share premium account is
governed by Section 48B of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

(i) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the
consolidated financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with accounting
policies set out in note 2(0).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {for the year EidsdlsTDecember 2011)
%éﬂjggﬁﬁ M;JEI (BZE2011F12A31B L EFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REM)

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

(iii)  Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Company and
other eligible persons recognised in the accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(k)(ii).

(iv)  PRC statutory reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing
the PRC enterprises, certain of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries, which are wholly foreign-owned
enterprises, are required to allocate at least 10% of
their after-tax profit but before dividend distribution
to general reserve until the reserve has reached
50% of their registered capital. The general reserve
can only be used, upon approval by the relevant
authority, to offset accumulated losses or increase
capital. Appropriation to general reserve during the
year amounted to approximately HK$1,899,981 (2010:
HK$352,575).

(e) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2011, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was HK$15,094,291
(2010: HK$20,468,286). After the balance sheet date,
the directors proposed a final dividend of 4 HK cents
per ordinary share (2010: a final dividend of 4 HK
cents per ordinary share) amounting to HK$17,288,290
(2010: HK$16,469,810). This dividend has not been
recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. F|R&E%45R A7)

22 EBEX- -FHEERE(E)

(d) REZMHEERBENE)

(i)  EBEAEE
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(iv) HEXFERFE

REBREAREMBZEZEZREEHCEZER  AE
ErHrEMBARBIIEBELE  AIEKM0%DZ
RERNSRINETAREE EEXHBEIMELAD
50% A1 ETRHEBEAVLEHE R ERANIKERTE
BIESKENER - AFESRELBREGBIEBLHNAE
#1,899,9817T (20104 : & #352,57570) °

(e) HWAEE

R2011F12A31B R AN E TAR AR R 2 REE SR
/575 #15,094,2917T (20104F : # #20,468,2867T) ° A
BEBEREFAR ESZZTRAAETRITER
Al (2010F : REE TR T BBBEAML) - BFH5
#17,288,2907T (2010F : /& #16,469,8107T) - N E E
BEREFHEERERERBAE -
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 4EZEhGNBRT ended 31 December 2011)

e

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(f) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes judgements to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors
its capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines net debt as total debt (which includes trade and
other payables) plus unaccrued proposed dividends.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity
less unaccrued proposed dividends.

During 2011, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2010, was to maintain the net debt-
to-adjusted capital ratio of no more than 50% (2010:
41%). In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debt.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BUBBREM)

22 EBEX -FEERE(E)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {for the year EidsdlsTDecember 2011)
%éﬂjggﬁﬁ Bﬁﬁi (BZE2011F12A31B L EFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REN)

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(f) Capital management

The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31 December
2011 and 2010 was as follows:

22 EBEX- -FHEERE(E)

(f) BXREE(E)

R20114F K2010F12 A31H 2/ F B EEALAER AN
flanR

The Group The Company
AEH KAF

2011 2010 2011 2010

HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$

B B B B
Current liabilities: REAEE:
Trade and other payables B hHmEMEKRE 239,725,930 184,933,361 154,818,197 123,368,976
Add: Proposed dividends m: BEERERE 17,288,290 16,469,810 17,288,290 16,469,810
Net debt BEEFE 257,014,220 201,403,171 172,106,487 139,838,786
Total equity B 533,504,855 511,554,523 425,979,225 417,335,158
Less: Proposed dividends W BEIRERE (17,288,290) (16,469,810)  (17,288,290) (16,469,810)
Adjusted capital RAREXR 516,216,565 495,084,713 408,690,935 400,865,348
Net debt-to-adjusted FEEHEFAERA

capital ratio i Eb il 50% 41% 42% 35%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 4EZEhGNBRT ended 31 December 2011)
%éﬂjﬁiﬁi BT‘JLEI (BZE2011F12A8318 L FE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AB¥AREEN)
23 COMMITMENTS 23  RiE
(@) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 (a) 20115 12A3184&G4 M BME 2 A IREN KM
December 2011 not provided for in the BAREEMT -
consolidated financial statements were as
follows:
The Group The Company
AEH KAF
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
B BB B B
Contracted for: B4
— Construction work —JEETIE 135,619 16,459 = =
— Purchase of equipment —HERBRIEA
and moulds 6,104,759 7,411,473 - -
6,240,378 7,427,932 - -

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign
currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to risks
and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

(a) Credit risk and concentration risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash
and cash equivalents and trade debtors. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the balance sheets.

117

24 BHH¥EAREERAFE

FE E2RHE FXRINERRENAEEN—K
EGERTEL -GLRART R BREREX AEEH
MBEERRRERE T -

(a) FERBRETEAR
AEENEERRIEXREBREIACEFEREALES

BN - BAEERBRZELZINEEABRTERA
MBEERMEIE -

Annual Report 2011 3§



Notes to the consolidated financial statements {for the year EidsdlsTDecember 2011)
%éﬂjggﬁﬁ M;JEI (BZE2011F12A31B L EFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REM)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(@) Credit risk and concentration risk (Continued)

Substantially all the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
are deposited in financial institutions in Hong Kong and
the PRC. The credit risk is limited as the majority of
counterparties are financial institutions with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies
or stated-controlled financial institutions with good
reputations.

In respect of trade debtors, management has a credit
policy in place and the exposure to the credit risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis. Individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade debtors are due within 30 to
90 days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group
and the Company does not obtain collateral from
customers. Management considers the aggregate risks
arising from the possibility of credit losses are limited
and to be acceptable.

The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit risk
is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics
of each customer. The default risk of the industry
and country in which customers operate also have
an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At
the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company
have a certain concentration of credit risk as 26%
(2010: 26%) and 28% (2010: 27%); and 74% (2010:
75%) and 77% (2010: 76%) of the trade debtors was
due from the largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively. Management does not expect
any significant losses from trade debtors that have not
been provided for other than the impairment loss on
bad and doubtful debt as set out in note 16.
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AEETERCRREFEEE —REAREERTZ
ZEENTEHSREE EeRPULEERARESERE

ARZHEFUHERBEREEFREBIREERY
Z A R BERES Z R EER IR -
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EEmAZNEERR - ;TEAF)’TEKZFELEF Z?f/\
%EZ%}E'HQEETTTIEJZTE o EFHETEHEER
FAEIHB 2 ERLCHEMARNENEN  XERT
FrENERREFMENZERENESR - EHEK
HRIEHRBEHREES ARLE30-9008 NEIH - BEa— A2k
WHEF &S HF2BBREN I RER FTEMEMER -
AEE-—HRITeREFPWRBERD REAT MW &
BEERAHBEZFERRELE ZRTRARARKAE

AEERARARMEBZEERR  ETEZZEFZME5
BHEMyE BEEE ﬁﬁEzﬁ%&lz«zﬁaAﬂ[ﬂﬁT
VECERR  HEERERL  cREER  AEBEAE
RAIMNAREF(EE ZEB ARIE26% (20104 : 26%)
:28% (20104 : 27%) : F274% (2010%F : 75%) K77%
(20104 : 76%) ' AR —FERENEEETER - &
BENEEIEEATEAMNERGEMNSRER T
FEMIFE16 2 AR BEE A -
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
and the Company’s financial liabilities which are based
on the contractual undiscounted cash flows (including

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB RER)
24 HBEBREERAFEGE)
(b) BLRBYEAR

AEEET2ENEHRERALSEZARSEERA
BREEMRSABRRERENERAENREFFR - K
SECZBRRRERERRKRARHZRDIERK - AHE
REBZFEHRCREBRANSHEZR 2F S UE
AEEHERRRSEREL -

TRINBAKERARBZIFTELEERBBENEER
ZBHTANHRFB ERENRGNLAZBREAZR
R (BEBRBOEZMNE  MEFHMNEHEREE
B sEZHE) RAKERARAZEFEEZERZAY

A

interest payments, computed using contractual rates EFr& :
or, if floating, based on rates current at the balance
sheet date) and the earliest date the Group and the
Company can be required to pay:
(i) The Group (i) KE
2011 2010
Total Total
contractual Within contractual Within
undiscounted 6 months undiscounted 6 months
cash flow or on cash flow oron
Carrying  &iHRAEN demand Carrying  BiHEAH demand
amount MEERR  6EART amount  HMRBHE  6EAAL
REE ZRER  ERERE REME LRER  ERETR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETT BETT BETT BEFT BEFT BETT
Trade and other payables BHREMERER 239,726 239,726 239,726 184,933 184,933 184,933
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REA)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(i) The Company

24 HBEBREERATVEGE)

(b) ELREBMERER(E)
(i)  AERA]

2011 2010

Total Total
contractual Within contractual Within
undiscounted 6 months undiscounted 6 months
cash flow or on cash flow oron
Carrying  &iHRAEN demand Carrying  B&HEAH demand
amount WREER  6EAAR amount  MIREHE  6EAAZR
REE ZRER  ERERE REME LRER  ERETR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETFT BEFT BEFT
Trade and other payables B o R EMERRE 154,818 154,818 154,818 123,369 123,369 123,369
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERHBARBRR 25,836 25,836 25,836 26,761 26,761 26,761
180,654 180,654 180,654 150,130 150,130 150,130

In order to manage the liquidity demands above,
at 31 December 2011, HK$169,334,260 (2010:
HK$161,273,936) and HK$117,151,309 (2010:
HK$88,097,464) of the Group’s and the Company’s
assets, respectively, were held as cash that is
considered readily realisable.

EMRFERE LM ES MEFT K KR20115F12H318 -
AEERARADNFEIRZGHMER 2 RS BB
169,334,260 T (20104 : /& #161,273,9367T) & /& &
117,151,3097T (20104 : 7#1£88,097,4647T) °

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. F|R % %45E A7 120



Notes to the consolidated financial statements 4EZEhGNBRT ended 31 December 2011)
%éﬂjﬁiﬁi BT‘JLEI (BZE2011F12A8318 L FE)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s and the Company’s interest rate risk
arises primarily from cash and cash equivalents
which were contracted at short-term variable rates
and expose the Group and the Company to cash flow
interest rate risk. The Group’s and the Company’s
interest rate profile as monitored by management is set
out in (i) below.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BUBBREM)

24 HHEBREERATVEGE)

(c) F=mEb

REERARBZAMERBREFEREIEEFEEBAZ
HNERRAIHMNERSBAEERARRERERE
KRR AEBRARAZANXGERAEEEERELH
F(@HE R -

(i) Interest rate risk () FIEmEE
The Group The Company
S -1 N
2011 2010 2011 2010

Effective Effective Effective Effective

interest interest interest interest

rate rate rate rate

BRAZ ERA = BRA= BRI
%  HK$'000 %  HK$000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$000
BETT BEFT BETT BETFT
Variable rate bank deposits  $R{TE HFHZE 1.02 167,471 06 157,988 0.3 115618 0.2 84,946

(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2011, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
increase/decrease the Group’s and the Company’s
profit after tax and retained profits by approximately
HK$1,550,000 (2010: HK$1,419,000) and
HK$1,156,000 (2010: HK$849,000) respectively. Other
components of equity would not be affected (2010:
HK$Nil) by changes in interest rates.
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(i)  BEESN

R2011F12A3IBEMBEM SR ZHIFTITIENIE
ST fEET— AR F R AR A1 10025 T - #5505
B AREE RAR R ZBREENE R RS RS
#1497l 78 #1,550,0007T (20104 : 75 #1,419,0007T) &
75 1,156,000 (20104 : /& %849,0007T) ° EfbiEsm
NEFEEB)FEZE (2010F : BEZ L) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REA)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 100 basis
point increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual
balance sheet date. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2010.

(d) Foreign currency risk
(i) Foreign currency transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales and expense transactions that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United
States Dollar and British Pound.

(i) Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of other trade receivables and payables held
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where
necessary to address short-term imbalances.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. F|R&E%45R A7)

24 HBEBREERATVEGE)

(c) F=EEMR(E)
(i)  BEEDH (&)

N ERSIRESTE RS EREHENEE R HEMmME
Rl WEFERARBAZ A ATHE LR BITE RIETEM T
TAZAERE - 1002 FEMFAPVIEEEEBHEET
—EAFELEEAHB AR BB 2T E - 247
L2010 F ME R 2 B AE#LT -

(d) HhEEE
(i) SRS 5

AEETEHNUARERLEXBEEE NI Z G
BZWAMZEmAREINERR BRIEERRZE
BEERETRHEE -

(i) EFEREERAE

ERNERZNRER I EERBEZEME SR
MEMZIE AEESESEZRERNERNTFER - L
REEXTEAREBLINE  BREFEQAEFE AN
BEXHREE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(B REN)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 24 BBERMEBERQFEGE)

AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (d) HhEEmERE (&)

(i) The following table details the Group’s and the (i) TXRIIRALEERARBREE B REB LB
Company’s exposure at the balance sheet date UM EE I —TBEEEIENEELKE
to currency risk arising from recognised assets BEmAEEHNEEER -
or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate.

The Group The Company
S -1 N
2011 2010 2011 2010
United United United United
States British States British States British States British
Dollars  Pounds Dollars Pounds Dollars  Pounds Dollars Pounds
EY 33 eI 55 Ey %3 e i3
000 '000 '000 ‘000 '000 000 '000 '000
fr & 77 T# ¥ & T T#
Trade and other receivables & 5 [t Z fti fE i85 18 22,147 421 19,462 1,394 22,147 421 19,250 1,394
Cash and cash equivalents B RRE&SEEE 14,862 8 10,936 2 14,862 8 10,936 2
Trade and other payables 2 5 REfERER (7,770) (114)  (5,868) (55)  (7,770) (114) (5,868 (55)
Amounts due from NG
subsidiaries - - - - 10,105 - 8,358 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEf i B2 &IE 7 - - - - (48) - (246) =
Net exposure arising from ~ FRRAZEEREE
recognised assets and FEFE
liabilities 29,239 315 24,530 1,341 39,296 315 32,430 1,341
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(A% R Efr)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 24 HBEREERLFEGE)
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (d) SEER(E)

(iv)  Sensitivity analysis (iv) BEEDH

The following table indicates the approximate change TXMEBAEEN AR RREEHFASEXERZE

in the Group’s and the Company’s profit after tax and & 7 &2 A &

ek

retained earnings in response to reasonably possible &

changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the
Group and the Company have significant exposure at
the balance sheet date.

o

HENH R EIERREBMER 2D

The Group The Company
A5HE LN
2011 2010 2011 2010
Effect Effect Effect Effect
Increase/ on profit Increase/ on loss Increase/ on profit Increase/ on loss
(decrease) after tax and (decrease)  after tax and (decrease) after tax and (decrease) after tax and
in foreign retained in foreign retained in foreign retained in foreign retained
exchange profits exchange profits exchange profits exchange profits
rate Hhie rate HRHig rate BB rate Bk
ExfEm/ REARRE EXgh/ BERRE  EXEN/ RANRRE  EXEN/ BERRE
(H9)  BRz%E (B9)  Biz#E (BD)  BRz%E ()  BNZTE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BREFT ¥ BRTT ¥
United States Dollars %7t 5% 9,487 5% 7,939 5% 12,742 5% 10,495
(5%) (9,487) (5%) (7,939) (5%) (12,742) (5%) (10,495)
British Pounds %73 5% 159 5% 701 5% 159 5% 701
(5%) (159) (5%) (701) (5%) (159) (5%) (701)
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)
(iv)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates occurred at
the balance sheet date and applied to the Company
and each of the Group entities’ exposure to currency
risk for non-derivative financial instruments in
existence at that date, and that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the period until the next annual
balance sheet date. In this respect, it is assumed that
the pegged rate between the Hong Kong Dollar and
the United States Dollar would be materially unaffected
by any changes in movement in value of the United
States Dollar against other currencies. Results of the
analysis as presented in the above table represent an
aggregation of the effects on each of the Company and
the Group entities’ loss after tax and equity measured
in the respective functional currencies, translated into
Hong Kong Dollar at the exchange rate ruling as at
the balance sheet date for presentation purposes. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2010.

(e) Fair values
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not

materially different from their fair value as at 31
December 2011 and 2010.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BUBBREM)

24 HBEBREERATVEGE)

(d) SEER(E)
(iv)  BEEDH (&)

FREIMIBRREZSEINEER L AERANAK
NRANREESEERENZBNEEZHITESR T AN
Az ERER - MAAAEMA] 2 EECEMNEK) REF

Edz2e e BBRhAEXREE T —HFEEE
BILHM SRR EE) - Bt - RRBILALETZES
EXSITERXTARAMEE ESMIEATE -
ERFAIIRZAMGERESEBE R AR ERBZGR R &
NMEBEDEEEZEERZEXR(GIE2HME) LBA
BITET B 2B 2 45T o E1T 0T 2 EfEE20105F AT K
R ERAER -

(e) 2AFE

FrEem T Az ARRSFEHEEMN20114F £2010F12A31
HZAFEEEKRNTR -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REA)

25 CONTINGENT ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group and the
Company had no significant contingent assets or
liabilities.

26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(a) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group represents amounts paid to the Company’s
chairman and executive directors as disclosed in note
8.

25 WAREERER

R20114 2010512 8310 - AEB M AR TR AR
EEKEE-

26 BEEAZEARZI Rt

(a) FEEEEAEME

EETSEREABMS BELAARANTEERH
BT -

2011 2010

HK$ HK$

B JE

Short-term employee benefits HEEERF 8,302,706 6,897,458
Post-employment benefits & ERAEF 383,000 303,000
8,685,706 7,200,458

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note
6(a)).

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. F|R&E%45R A7)
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26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(Continued)

(b) Other related party transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2011, no other
material related party transactions were entered into by
the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, rental
income of HK$180,000 was received from and
secretarial fees of $198,000 were paid to a related
company, in which Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang, and Mr.
Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho, have beneficial interests. Dr.
Wong, Philip Kin Hang is a director of the Company
and Mr. Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho is a close family
member of certain directors of the Company.

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the
company balance sheet and in note 13.

27 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

After the balance sheet date, the directors proposed
a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note
22(b).

28 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors
used in applying the Group’s accounting policies have
a significant impact on the Group’s financial position
and operating results. Some of the accounting policies
require the Group to apply estimates and judgements,
on matters that are inherently uncertain. The critical
accounting judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies are described below.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BUBBREM)

26 BAMASZERXRZ K& (E)

(b) HtbEAHSIEE

R2011F12A31BFE I NEBEHEBAR HRGETH
HMEARS -

R2010F12A31BFEIF - KERBEE A 22 W AS
#5180,000 T & X 1~ BB 75 2 #n & & A 75 %198,0007T -
BT NERREARAZEB AR 2 EE S -
BT LIRARRESERTAREERARAELE
BEZREKE -

EEAM S 2 EBREERARBERBR ZMEISTHHE -

27 BERREHE

BERBEREERR EFEARBEZRHE - FER

P sE22(b) °

28 EEHfhET R A

EZRARAEEZEHBRNITE  AE A
SEZUBMNA R EEXEEERTE - RESFEK
ERAEERAG RHAHEIEESMH L - BRES
HE R EASRE 2 @5 BRFAIWT ¢
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

28 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis or reducing balance basis over the
estimated useful lives. The Group reviews annually
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any.
The depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted
if there are significant changes from the previous
estimation.

(b) Impairments

In considering the impairment loss that may be
required for certain property, plant and equipment,
interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases, and investments in subsidiaries,
the recoverable amount of the asset needs to be
determined. The recoverable amount is the greater
of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in
use. It is difficult to estimate precisely the fair value
price because quoted market prices for the assets
may not be readily available. In determining the value
in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to items such as level
of turnover and amount of operating costs. The Group
uses all readily available information in determining
an amount that is a reasonable approximation of
the recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of items such as turnover and operating
costs.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are
assessed and provided based on the directors’ regular
review of the ageing analysis and an evaluation
of collectability. A considerable level of judgement
is exercised by the directors when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each
individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss

would affect the operating results in the year and in
future years.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. F|R&E%45R A7)

28 EEtfhErRHE (&)

(a) B

B 4 7 DA B AR Sk M SRR O 5 T (2 A
BE - AT ERT KD EENAEREHHR
BEMm WA RROFTERS ®ERBERT BT
B K B T A% o

(b) WE

ZERIETYME BELRRE FHFEERZIES
RMBARZIRERAIKREIEERGEHRBERSE A
BEEEZAKOSRE ARESESFEEEAERE
EMEZBRSE BHRULEEEZMEMETERN S
R MENVERMMAEE  EETEREER - BE
FRELAZBMRERENTREARAEE MARE
RBEKFPREERACBRERBFELERN G - A 5HE
EETCRBEEAMABANERSZERN  MEBEAAUNW
e AEBOSH BREREAEREXRHZER
NIBAAB NS XA RS ERA L AT BIE -

AEBEREEIEETE LT 2BRE DT & AT e @ 5 (4 &
REFRBREBRETHH EENTLELREPZEE
BRBERN R TE—ERE 2 HE -

PR EBREMSR DG ERRZEFFE -
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28 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c) Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions
and interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully
evaluates the tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment
of transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses
not yet used and temporary deduction differences.
Those deferred tax assets can only be recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future profit will
be available against which the unused tax credit can
be utilised, consequently management’s judgement
is required to assess the probability of future taxable
profits. Management’s assessment is constantly
reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are
recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

(d) Inventory provision

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analyses, projections of expected future
saleability of goods and management experience and
judgement. Based on these reviews, write-down of
inventories will be made when the carrying amounts
of inventories fall below their estimated net realisable
value. Due to changes in customers’ performance,
actual saleability of goods may be different from
estimates and profit or loss could be affected by
differences from estimates.

(e) Share-based payments

The estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted to employees and other eligible persons
measured by professional valuers based on the
Black Scholes model with modifications to reflect the
impact of vesting periods and exercise patterns on
the option value. The accuracy of the above estimates
could affect the amount of share-based payments
transactions recognised in the income statement.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BUBBREM)

28 EEtfhErRHE (&)

(c) mBH

BEEMSHBGIREE TR IARMEARIE 2 FE M
MEHRA 228 - AEBERWAGRIZ2EBEHE - I
BEULRBERIARE - 2ERX 5 HERIETITE BT
G RRIBEBI 2 FREZE)

EAETR IR A B Jh g oK B PR (B B B HUR = B8R 2 B R B 1R B
B MRZEFRTEHIAEEEN KRR G N K] AEEE
MASBERR BB AE T SR BEEANGER
RAE R R F 2 AT ge 1t - BIRE < AV T0E BAMR AT - 1
R R &SR B A A RPN R FE R IR B - Al @ FERR AR
SMEFET TR B E ©

(d) =wERE

AEERTEH RS BREFEREDT BHREHEE
BELRLAGB FEREAE - ZERX R EREFE
REE NKEREGEFREBEFEMEFERE -
EERAMEE BREES R A ZEE R T
AIRER B A KBS -

(e) HUROA/EWEER

BETRENMEMEEBALT ZBEREZ X FERBT A
BXMGEMREBHFRAE - WELETARRBAE
EEHEBMRTEEAZEE - Ll fAstEERER
FTEUABRNAERAERHEESRER IS -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AEaEREN)
29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF 29 HEZF2011F12H31ALEECEMHE X
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS H W25  HEARBREZEBELE

AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial #HZ WSS EHET¥ZE BESTMASE R
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of %2 IE(EE] FERRZE  BREFZ2011%E12H31H
amendments and five new standards which are not yet  |F & E IR A& % - Hmﬂiﬁéﬁt%%ﬁéﬂﬁ‘%iﬁi‘éﬁm o f£
effective for the year ended 31 December 2011 and GELENHR U TNAREEBAEE Z KEREAME
which have not been adopted in these consolidated {3k :
financial statements. Of these developments, the
following relate to matters that may be relevant to
the Group’s operations and consolidated financial
statements:
Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
KU BEAR R
FUEZETHEER
Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures\— Transfers of financial assets 1 July 2011
ERUBREENTE
RE-HEZeREE 201167H1H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements
- prese\ntatlon of items of other comprehensive income 1 July 2012
BRGEAINER 2 HEtb2EKRIER 2012%7H1H
Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 1 January 2014
EEGH LRSS BEEMEERSMEE 201451 A1H
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2015
BEREMBREERN - RMITE 2015F1A1H
HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements 1 January 2013
EBHHHREERN0 - HAMBEEK 20131 H1H
HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities 1 January 2013
EBMBHRE L2 REMEEY B2 RE 201351 A1H
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement 1 January 2013
EEPBRE LG AVEGE 2013F1H1H
HKAS 27 (2011), Separate financial statements 1 January 2013
BB GTEAR7 (2011) * B M BERE 20131 H1R

The Group is in the process of making an assessment & =5 & & 37 7~ £ [B [F 20 {4 78 87 1 = 1 A HTERI R IR
of what the impact of these amendments, new %%Em%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁf‘ﬁzwé 0o &5 AL S (& ET
standards and new interpretations is expected to be in ¥ ER|ILFHREE TS H AE Z *@%% KB & AR R
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded  :&Epk E AR ZE o

that their adoption is unlikely to have a significant

impact on the Group’s results or financial position.
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Five Years Financial Summary
LEMBHRE

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS REBRHER

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$’000

BETT REETT XEETT BETT BEFR

Turnover = 842,856 724,191 817,000 966,564 1,175,520

Profit/(loss) before taxation and B & £RIFEHI T K

share of losses of associates 1G5 E R R BB
Al (E18) (1,217)  (30,619) 7,983 37,104 24,256

Share of losses of associates T B & 1 B 18 (52,868) - - - -
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRELRTE A, (B518) (54,085)  (30,619) 7,983 37,104 24,256
Income tax (expense)/credit FrR® () 3T A 8,591 10,329 (23) (7,312) (6,096)
Profit/(loss) for the year and RN AR R G RE R

attributable to equity A,/ (E8)

shareholders of the Company (45,494) (20,290) 7,960 29,792 18,160
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Five Years Financial Summary

EFEMBHRE

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET HEEEAEBX
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$’000
EEFr EEFr B¥Fr BEFT EETT
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEREE 183,256 175,207 177,426 200,107 222,924
Interests in leasehold land held BEEEHEEEER
for own use under operating 2 i
leases 10,238 10,405 10,112 10,000 10,077
Deferred tax assets EERTHEE 4,223 5,727 6,672 8,378 9,224
Net current assets MBEEFE 399,466 300,997 291,759 293,231 291,487
Deferred tax liabilities EERIERE (3,313) (2,411) (165) (161) (207)
Net assets BEFE 593,870 489,925 485,804 511,555 533,505
Share capital B 196,932 196,932 197,092 205,873 216,104
Reserves & 396,938 292,993 288,712 305,682 317,401
Total equity attributable to AARREEMGER
equity shareholders of
the Company 593,870 489,925 485,804 511,555 533,505

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. F|R&E%45R A7)
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